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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Review

On behalf of the board of directors (the "Board”), |
would like to report the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (the "Year") to the
shareholders. During the Year, the Group's turnover
declined by 4% year on year to approximately RMB1,571
million compared to 2016. Profit attributable to
shareholders for the Year increased by 26% year on year
fo RMB184 million compared to 2016. Earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA")
increased by 12% year on year to RMB366 million
compared to 2016. Basic earnings per share and diluted
earnings per share for the Year amounted to RMB26.81
cents and RMB26.78 cents respectively (2016:
RMB22.35 cents and RMB22.26 cents respectively).
In appreciation of the shareholders’ support, the Board
resolved to declare a final dividend of HK3.3 cents per
share for the Year, which is subject to the approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the "AGM") of the Company. Together with the interim
dividend of HK1.5 cents, the total dividend per share for
the Year would be HK4.8 cents (2016: HK4.8 cents).

In 2017, the global economies recovered concurrently
for the first time since the 2008 financial crisis with
moderate inflation. In the US, the labor market reached
full employment, and the Fed raised the Federal Funds
Rate for three times during the year from the range of
1.25% to 1.5%. The economy of Europe experienced
strong recovery, as the European Central Bank continued
its loose monetary policy. The mild recovery of the
Japanese economy was mainly resulted from the net
exporfs recovery. Emerging markets performed robustly as
a result of the global economic recovery as well. Since
the geopolitical risks in Europe, the Middle East, and
Northeast Asia were remained under control, there were
no material impacts on the global economy in 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITREBES

In China, the domestic economy maintained a steady
development momentum. The country’s GDP increased
by around 6.9% over the previous year, which was
the first time the growth rate stopped slowing down
and resumed uptrend again since 201 1. Data from the
General Administration of Customs of China indicates that
China’s import and export of goods increased by 14.2%
in 2017 compared to 2016, reversing the previous two
consecutive years of declining trend. During the Year,
the Chinese government enhanced the environmental
profection law enforcement. Some companies had fo
suspend operations, or even close the business, in order
to rectify the practices that did not meet the requirements
of the environmental protection law. Under severe
pressure from environmental protection requirements, small
tfo medium-sized companies were facing increasingly
harsh business environment, while the larger and more
standardized enterprises were actually benefited from
the situation in the medium to long term. This created a
profound impact on the ecosystem of China's chemical
industry, and affecting the short term supply chain of many
companies at the same time.

The Group has actively implemented the “Smart Production
+ Supply Chain Services” and “360-degree aroma
chemicals industry strategy” and has gradually achieved
results in recent years. On one hand, the Group has
been focusing on increasing existing large international
customers integrated business contribution by providing
closer supply chain services to the world large-scale
midstream and downstream manufacturers, and thus
effectively raising the Group’s global market share.
On the other hand, the Group has actively adopted
strategic sourcing and resource operation measures to
achieve better overall cost advantage. leveraged on the
infegrated benefits of supply chain operations, the Group
has managed the risks resulted from the environmental
profection law's impact on the industry supply chain during
the year, especially the Group has achieved economies
of scale from the aroma chemical integrated platform.
However, during the year, due to the strict logistics
control in Xiamen and surrounding areas as a result of the
BRICS Summit held in Xiamen in September, the Group's
two major factories located in Haicang and Changtai
had to suspend more than one month production in the
third quarter. To cope with this, the Group immediately
adopted a number of measures to minimize the impact on
operations with its existing inventory and external supply
chain deployment. Nevertheless, the restrictions from the
BRICS Summit, together with the later incidents of public
steam supply delays, caused an accidental shutdown of
the Haicang plant for more than a month, which inevitably
affected the business and sales of the full year, and led to
a decrease in annual sales revenue by 4% compared to
the previous year.
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In respect of the “Scent & Taste” business, the Group's
petroleum-based aroma chemicals attained a rapid
growth benefited from the Group's proactive upgrades in
environmental profection and safety over the years, and
the downsizing in the domestic manufacturing capacity
of chemicals as a result of China's new environmental
protection policy and supply-side reform. In the scent
product category, the Group has been actively developing
the downstream aroma business and are well-received
by key customers. As for the taste product category, the
Group has been providing standardized compounded
flavoring sauce to catering providers (centralized
kitchens), and providing solutions for standardization of
Chinese cuisine. The Group will continue to add more
new products to the aroma chemicals and scent product
categories to enrich its product portfolio. The Group's
pursuit of product quality and customer service has
provided guarantee for the steady growth of the Scent &
Taste business.

In respect of the “Naturals” business, the growth has been
stable. As the facilities at the existing Xinglin production
base have been close to full utilization, the Group
planned to upgrade and move the related business to the
Changtai production base and expand new production
lines. The construction of the Changtai production base
will comprise production facilities of three major business
segments, including natural food additives, natural
essential oil, and natural extracts. The upgraded Changtai
base will become a brand new natural products industrial
park of the group. The production lines for natural food
additives will be completed and commence operation in
the first half of 2019. The Group also launched a forward-
looking strategic plan in relation to its upstream supply
chain. The database and sourcing analytic system for
natural products have already commenced operation,
thereby laying a solid foundation for the operation of the
natural essential oil supply chain.
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The construction of Project Gulei started at the end
of 2017 based on a new plan, and has entered the
phase of large-scale construction after several years of
comprehensive planning and adjustments. “EcoGreen
Gulei” is the first project allowed to kick off in the Gulei
Petrochemical Industrial Park since an industrial accident
happened in 2015. Part of the plant is expected
to complete construction and gradually commence
production in the first half of 2019. The Group's strategic
planning in Gulei corresponds to the upcoming changes
in global economic frends, and the new environmental
protection policy of China. In response to the technology
advancement and the changes in industry demand, it
has optimized product mix of international and domestic
markets, and emphasized its “Aroma chemicals and
functional materials industry co-development strategy”
based on the balanced supply chain of its natural-based
and petroleum-based resources. The Gulei plant will
become the core driver of the Group’s future business
growth, with the gradual implementation of its resource
collaborative multi-industry integration development plan.

Outlook

The global economy is expected to continue ifs upswing
in 2018, with the support of low unemployment rate and
the rebound of consumer confidence. We feel optimistic
about the global economic prospect, but remain cautious
about geopolitical tensions, trade friction, intensification
of protectionism, and risks related to the economic policies
of different countries in the "post-quantitative easing” era.

After experiencing the adjustment and the consolidation
in the years after the financial crisis, the global chemical
industry is expected fo enfer into a cycle of recovery,
including the flavor and fragrance market. The flavor and
fragrance market is expected fo grow at an annual rafe
of 4% to 5%, with an optimistic prospect, amid varying
degrees of expected growth in the new economy and
the developed countries. The industry expects that the
total value of the flavor and fragrance market will exceed
US$30 billion in 2020, with China and India as the
fastest growing markets, and the scale of the Asio-Pacific
market replacing the number one position of the North
American market. Moreover, the new functional and
new material chemicals are expected to grow rapidly in
coming years at double digit annual growth rate, and
China will be one of the fastest growing markets.
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The Group's major business aroma chemicals experienced
abnormal conditions (including safety and environmental
issues, etc.) between the fourth quarter of 2017 and the
first quarter of 2018. There will be expected varying
degrees of supply shortage for some of the Group's
key products in the international market in 2018. In
response to the changing situation, the priority of the
operational focus in the coming year is to fully upgrade
and increase the necessary investment of safety and
environmental management, to ensure the longterm safety,
stability and sustainability of production. Secondly, the
Group will increase output through technology upgrade,
transformation optimization, scientific scheduling, and
adopting the strategy of suboptimal alternatives. The
Group will also strengthen the connection with contractors,
and adopt decentralized manufacturing to further increase
production. To ensure the reliability and cost advantage
of the supply chain, the Group will continue to actively
develop strategic resources and expand the global
infegration of its supply chain.

The natural extracts (natural essential oil) business
has become an independent business segment of the
Group. The application and development of products
include aroma, food additives, personal care products,
aromatherapy and medical ointments, etc. The Group has
an advantage in directly managing the origin of resources,
and has established a natural resources database and
a sourcing analytic system, which can further increase
revenue and bring new growth engine for the Group's
business.

As living standard improves and consumption structure
upgrades, consumers are pursuing more fashionable and
new tastes, as they pursue more health, nutrition, and
hygiene. More new flavors products are needed to satisty
consumer increasingly sensitive taste buds. This underpins
the rapid growth of market demand, and creates a broad
market for the food additives and seasoning business.
Corresponding to the industrialization of the traditional
Chinese cuisine and the increase in chain store operation,
the Group will ride on its experiences and resources in the
flavor and fragrance business to provide customers with
its excellent product series, starting from the fast-growing
catering market. And a scaled-up end market sales
network of the compounded flavoring sauce will begin to
take shape.
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In respect of specialty chemicals, as the hazard-free
and green trends become more prevalent in the field of
agrochemical industry, the market demand for vegetable
oil-based solvent, adjuvants, and original drug is growing
rapidly. The Group will ride on its experiences in
research and development accumulated over the years
to cooperate with customers in launching more product
portfolios to meet the market demand following the green
tfrends. Non-toxic and fragrant plant-based products
are increasingly well-received in the field of electronic
chemicals. The Group will also provide customer with
the best solutions with its comprehensive advantages in
natural resources, product and aroma development.

EcoGreen is speeding up the construction of the Gulei
Industrial Park. The Group's target is to turn the Gulei
Industrial Park into a world-class production base of
functional chemicals and functional materials. Supported
by the new strategic supply chain of natural-based
and petroleum-based resources, the Group is actively
expanding the supply and applications of the key fine
chemical raw materials and enhancing business values.
The Gulei base is expected to cover a more enriched
product portfolio of functional chemicals and functional
materials. Gulei will gradually become the Group’s multi-
functional chemicals and new materials production base in
China in the coming years, fo achieve the grand vision of
the “New EcoGreen".

Furthermore, led by the strategy of “New EcoGreen”, and
in the face of changing global competitive landscape,
the Group is implementing the corporate transformation
strategies in full force. These include actively looking
for opportunities in merger and acquisition and business
partnership in the supply chain, enhancing the integrated
competitiveness and profitability of the business, and
striving to expand horizontally in potential areas to
increase the scale of collaborative operations, thus
reaching a new horizon in the upstream and downstream
supply chain synchronization.

The Group will continue uphold the noble mission of
"Commitment to bringing health and well-being to the
globe” and pursue the business philosophy “Ecogreen
and Ecofriendly”. In accordance with its vision of “making
the best use of talents and resources”, and to achieve
"Diversity, Synergy, Sharing and Unity”, EcoGreen will
make an unrelenting and unswerving effort to foster its
newly established businesses.
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Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express
my heartfelt gratitude to all our shareholders, customers,
suppliers and staff members for their consistent frust and
support which have been crucial to the Group's success.
| would also like to extend my sincere thanks to all the
directors of the Company (the "Directors”] and the Group's
advisors for their great support and valuable advice.

Yang Yirong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Financial Review

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the sales price
of major products slightly increased during the year.
The “BRICS Summit” held in Xiamen in early September
and the subsequent delay in public gas supply units
had caused the unexpected halt of the Haichang's
plant for more than a month. As a result, sales for the
year will inevitably have a cerfain impact, resulting in a
4% reduction in the Group's turnover to approximately

RMB1.57 billion.

(i)

Scent & Taste

"Scent & Taste” continued to be the Group's core
product segment, and constituted a stable and
major income source for the Group during the year
under review. As key ingredients used in many
daily consumer goods, “Scent and Taste” products
witnessed rising market demand with a combined
positive effect of its diversified applications and the
development in the emerging markets.

During the year under review, the Group has
launched and sold more than 100 types of “Scent”
products to customers around the world and its
revenue has recorded a 9% decrease of revenue
in last year. As the Group further expand its
market share in the field of fragrance, important
customers of the industry became more relied on the
Company's integrated supply chain. In addition,
the revenue of “Taste” products through provision of
solutions increased by 4% over the last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
revenue from the “Scent and Taste” sector
decreased by 8% to RMB938 million (2016:
RMB1,025 million) and accounted for 60% of the
Group's overall revenue (2016: 62%).

Naturals

In respect of the “Naturals” products, apart from
existing natural pharmaceutical raw materials,
the Group has been actively engaged in the
development of food additives business for the
production of food ingredients, fast food, frozen
food and pet nutrition food, which is produced with
purification and bioconversion technologies from
natural produces. Naturals mainly include seafood,
meat and mushroom extracts.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total
revenue from "Natural” products was RMB436
million (2016: RMB353 million), representing an
increase of 24% from last year and accounting for

28% of the Group's sales volume (2016: 22%).
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Financial Review (continued)

Revenue (continued)

(i)  Specialties and Others
Besides the chiral pharmaceuticals and specialty
chemicals, the Group also applies similar advanced
technologies of synthesis to produce agrochemical
"Specialties” chemicals, which will be turned into
a kind of eco-pesticide later. In terms of functional
chemicals in "Others” segment, disinfectant
chemicals maintained a steady stream of business;
an expansion to include electronic chemicals is also
in the works. Following the Group's development in
the supply chain of pefroleum-based products, it is
believed that the functional chemicals business will
usher in a period of growth.

During the year under review, revenue of products

in this category decreased by 23% to RMB197

million (2016: RMB255 million) and accounting for
2% (2016: 16%) of the Group's sales volume.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit
decreased by 17% to RMB334 million. Gross profit
margin decreased from 24.5% in 2016 to 21.3% in
2017. By the products category, the gross profit margin
of “Scent and Taste” decreased from 26.3% in 2016
to 23.0% in 2017, while "Naturals” decreased from
18.2% in 2016 to 16.8% this year. The profit margin of
"Specialties and Others” decreased from 26.4% in 2016
to 23.0% in 2017

Operating Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2017, selling and
marketing expenses accounted for 1.7% of the Group's
turnover (2016: 2.0%) whereas the administrative
expenses accounted for 4.5% of turnover (2016: 4.4%).
Under the Group's effective cost-cutting measures, the
operating expenses remained stable in these two years.

Other Gains — Net

During the year, the appreciation of the Renminbi caused
the Group fo record a net exchange loss of RMBO.35
million (2016: net exchange gain of RMB3.10 million) at
operation. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group also recorded a gain on disposal of an associate
amounting to RMB5.23 million. As a result, the “other
gains — net” was RMB4.1 million less than the previous
year.
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Financial Review (continued)

Net finance income/expenses

As a significant portion of the Group's borrowings is
denominated in USD, the fluctuation of the RMB during the
year has led to the exchange gain of RMB44.31 million
(2016: exchange loss of RMB50.05 million) arising from
bank borrowings denominated in USD. On the other hand,
the higher interest rates in this year have resulted in an
increase in finance expense, resulting in a net finance
income of RMB5.68 million {2016: net finance expenses
of RMB81.13 million).

Taxation

Tox expense of the Group for 2017 was RMB58.88
million (2016: RMB/4.23 million). Effective tax rate of the
Group is 24.3% (2016: 33.8%).

Profit for the Year

Profit attributable to shareholders in 2017 was RMB184
million, representing an increase of 26% as compared
to a profit of RMB145 million in 2016. Basic earnings
per share was approximately RMB26.81 cents (2016:
RMB22.35 cents). The EBITDA amounted to RMB366
million as compared to RMB328 million in 2016,
representing an increase of 12%.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
During the year under review, the Group's primary source
of funding mainly included the cash generated from
operating activities and financing activities. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, net cash generated from
operating activities amounted to RMB306 million (2016:
RMB42.71 million of net cash used). The Group had net
cash used in investing activities of RMB112 million {2016
RMB20.39 million). During the year under review, the net
cash inflow from financing activities amounted to RMB131

million (2016: RMB 197 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the average inventory turnover
days, average trade receivable turnover days and
average trade payable turnover days were 45 days, 143
days and 55 days (2016: 36 days, 144 days and 60

days), respectively.

The Group's financial position remains very solid and
healthy during the year under review. As at 31 December
2017, the total shareholders’ equity of the Group was
RMB1.91 billion (2016: RMB1.61 billion). The net
current assets and the current ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2017 were approximately RMB1,869
million (2016: RMB1,427 million) and 2.8 (2016: 2.1),

respectively.
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EEENRR DN

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

[continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had borrowings
and bills payable of approximately RMB1,214 million
and RMB144 million (2016: RMB1,212 million and
RMB152 million], respectively. Among the Group's
borrowing, outstanding short-term borrowings amounted
to RMB765 million (2016: RMB9QO million). As at 31
December 2017, the Group's ratio of borrowings to total
equity, was approximately 64% (2016: 75%) and the
Group's net cash balance, being pledged bank deposits,
shortterm bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents less
borrowings and bills payable amounted to RMB604
million (2016: RMB283 million).

With the positive cash inflow from the Group’s operations,
its available banking facilities and its existing cash
resources, the Group has very strong liquidity and
sufficient financial resources to meet its commitments,
working capital requirements and future investments for
expansion.

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in

Exchange Rates

Due to the combined factors that the sales and the
purchases of raw materials of the Group are mainly
denominated in USD and RMB, that the major production
base is in China, that the Group’s borrowings
are primarily in USD, RMB and HKD, and that the
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
exchange risks derived from the conversion from USD
or HKD to RMB are involved. The Group will review its
current hedging policy for foreign exchange in due course
to further reduce foreign exchange risks in the short-to-long-
term.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's borrowings
of approximately RMB406 million, RMB592 million,
RMB206 million and RMB10 million (2016: RMB406
million, RMB806 million, RMB nil and RMB nil] were
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and AUD respectively.

Interest is mainly charged on a floating rate basis. It is
expected that USD interest rates will continue to rise in
2017. The Group will continue to monitor the inferest rates
fluctuation in the market and take appropriate actions fo
minimize the interest rate risk.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Yirong
Chairman and President,
Committee

Mr. Yang, aged 56, is the founder of the Group. He
is responsible for strategic planning and formulation of
overall corporate development policy for the Group. Mr.
Yang holds a Bachelor’s degree in science, majoring
in chemistry from Huagiao University in 1982. Prior fo
founding the Group in 1994, Mr. Yang has exfensive
experience in the fine chemical manufacturing and trading
and has more than 24 years of experience in natural
organic chemistry research.

Chairman of Nomination

Mr. GONG Xionghui

Senior Vice President — Functional Materials Division

Mr. Gong, aged 54, is responsible for project
construction and strategic investment development. Mr.
Gong holds a Master's degree in chemical engineering
from Xiamen University and has accumulated over 30
years of experience in fine chemicals industry and
qualified as an I1SO Q000 auditor in the PRC in 1998. He
joined the Group in September 1999.

Ms. LU Jiahua

Senior Vice President — Group Financial Control, Member
of Remuneration Committee

Ms. Lu, aged 51, oversees the finance and accounting
and human resources functions for the Group in the PRC.
She has over 28 years of experience in accounting,
financial management, administration management and
internal auditing in a number of pharmaceutical and
fine chemical manufacturing enterprises. Ms. Lu holds a
Bachelor's degree and a Master's degree in economics
and corporate management from Xiamen University. She

joined the Group in April 2002.

Mr. LIN Zhigang

Senior Vice President —
Business

Mr. lin, aged 47, is responsible for the management
of the Group’s operation in aroma chemicals business.
He holds a Bachelor's degree of economics obtained
from Xiamen University. Prior to joining the Group in
June 1996, he worked in a foreign investment enterprise
and has concrete experience in sales and marketing
management, business development and production
management.

Group’s Aroma Chemicals
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGHNEBAEBRBE

Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. LIN David Ying Tsung

Senior Vice President — Engineering Project Management
and Gulei Division

Dr. lin, aged 66, joined the Group as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2016. After his
redesignation as an executive director on 28 March
2018, he is responsible for the management of the
construction of the Gulei project and the operation and
management of the Gulei Industrial Hub in the future.
He obtained the Doctor of Chemical Engineering from
the University of lllinois, USA. He has accumulated over
36 years of experience in the chemical industry, with
extensive experience in research and development,
business development, sales and management of
chemical-related projects. He has been working in
Honeywell UOP, Formosa Plastics, Dragon Aromatics and
HaiShunde Special Oil Co, and is responsible for large-
scale chemical project management and the development
and commercialization of petrochemical technology.
He has awarded numerous honors and awards at
Honeywell UOP and was awarded as a leading expert in
Zhangzhou's outstanding Taiwanese business leaders.

Mr. HAN Huan Guang

Senior Vice President — Group Strategic Investments and
Capital Markets, Member of Remuneration Committee,
Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Han, aged 56, responsible for strategic investments,
capital markets and investor relations. He graduated from
Zhongshan University (1 LUK 22) with a Bachelor's degree
in biochemistry in 1982 and obtained his Master's degree
in Business Administration from University of Technology,
Sydney, Australia in 1993. He has over 29 years’
experience in corporate finance, merger and acquisition,
infrastructure and new technology developments,
management of listed and non-listed companies in the PRC
and overseas. Over the years, he has been a Director,
and then Managing Director in China Everbright Medicine
Co. ltd. (o subsidiary of China Everbright Holdings
Group), livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and in other
senior management positions in Hong Kong, Singapore
and Mainland companies. He has been appointed as a
Councilor of the China Society of Biotechnology, and also
member of some professional associations in the region.
Mr. Han joined the Group in September 2005 as a Non-
executive Director, and became an Executive Director from

May 2006.

16

BE(E)

HITEE(E)

MERIE L

BFEet— TREE S ERE EES

MBL - 665 RZE—RFEXNATHMAR
EEEEBIIFRTES - Mﬁiﬁé:%*)\ﬁ
AT NBRAERATESRR  DELEER
EMBRERREEEXEMANEEEIE - M8
TREBFNHASLCEIREEL - REHIAE36
FZEITEER  ABELE(CTHBACERE

I MFEE EISHEBEEELR MBI E AR
RNEREZBRUOP  Formosa Plastics ~ BREF K&

BIREIEEXRE (T ZEA gi%LA&E;Eﬂ;I
BRMzABELERICZTIE RERERER
UOPHEZ R Ak st B2 50 82 - 0 B 1 51| A B M
AREMESHRFERAL

BEONEE

BREIEE — EER Ek&é"’ﬁ@ﬁiﬁv‘% C BN
E@/kE  [EHEZLEZ

LA 505 BERKBEKRE BEAMBREE

EBR BEER-NN_FEPLREBEE
REEMELEEL  WR—AN=FEEUEKRA
DEREEIANSBIFMERBELTZM - BRFEK
BHMEERRE - O EEAHRIWEE - UK
‘:F‘I&/\iﬂ\i\ﬁ&éﬂﬂ:\ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@%i@?@i
LELR - GABRNPEXAEENERRChina
Everbright Medicine Co. lid. « BBIREE B4R E(EH:
EELEFHLE  NEREE - EIRMNFE
NRAETHMSREERE - U LEFEEY T
RESZERER - RNABRAZEERE#Z
B BN _TEZERFNAMBAEEERIEHR
TES  URZZETFRABEAAITES -

EcoGreen Infernational Group Limited 18R EE B R A A



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Directors (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. FENG Tao

Vice Chairman

Mr. Feng, aged 50, is the Chief Executive Officer
of NewMargin Ventures Capital Co. ltd., which is a
leading venture capital management company in China.
Commencing from 1999, Mr. Feng has been serving
as the vice president officer (B/EfE) of The Foundation
of Science & Technology for Development of the State
Planning Committee, State Economic & Trade Commission
of the PRC [FEARKEMBEHREEESEZEE) and
Chinese Academy of Sciences. As one of pioneer of
venture-capital of China, Mr. Feng possesses exfensive
experience and knowledge of both domestic and overseas
markets. Mr. Feng was awarded the title of “Top 10
most influential venture capitalists in China” in the “Asia-
Pacific Venture Capitalist Summit and Most Influential
Venture Capitalists in China Award Ceremony” in April
2005. He obtained a Master’s degree in science from
the Department of Statistics and Applied Probability of
University of Alberta in June 1992. He joined the Group in
September 2005.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAU Fook Chuen

Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yau, aged 60, is a practising accountant and has
over 28 years of experience in public accountancy
practice which covers company secretarial service,
accounfancy, auditing and faxation. He is a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Yau is currently the proprietor of Yau & Wong,
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in

February 2004.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENGHNEBAEBRBE

Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. WONG Yik Chung, John

Chairman of Remuneration Committee, Member of Audit
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 51, among being the Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, was also served as an
Independent Nonexecutive Director of a few companies
listed in Hong Kong and oversea stock exchanges.
He is a professional accountant by training with more
than 26 years of experience in auditing and corporate
finance work, with exfensive exposure to the business
enterprise in the PRC. He was admitted as a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
in February 1992 and as an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. He also obtained a PRC Certificate of
Independent Directorship in 2002. He was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director in February 2004.

Senior Management

Mr. LIU Yaoquan, Gary

Innovative Technology Director

Dr. liu, aged 54, joined the Group in March 2014.
He is responsible for the technology and innovation
of the Group. Mr. liu obtained the Master's degree
in chemistry from the Chinese Academy of Science,
Doctoral degree in chemistry from the University of
Alberta, Canada and Postdoctoral research fellow of
University of California, United States of America. He
has been engaged in research in terpene chemicals and
aroma chemicals as well as organic synthesis of natural
alkaloids in Guangzhou Chemistry Research Institutes of
Chinese Academy of Sciences and University of Hanover,
Germany. Mr. Liv was the Senior Scientist of KOSAN
Biosciences, Inc. and the Chemistry Director of Evolva,
United States of America.

Mr. XIE Rongguo

Vice President — Strategic Resources Management

Mr. Xie, aged 55, Head of Strategic Resources
Management Center. Since he joined Ecogreen, Mr.
Xie has been the management positions in purchase
department, logistic department and commercial
department and the general manager of strategic
resources management. He has excellent professional
knowledge and rich experience in supply chain
management and strategic resources management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Y1 Zhixiong

Vice President — Corporate Administration

Mr. Yi, aged 56, Head of Corporate Administration. Mr.
Yi majored in fine chemicals in Tianjin University with a
Bachelor's degree in engineering. He has been the head
of management in a large manufacturing company before
he joined Ecogreen in September 1998.

Mr. YAN Da Yi, David

General Manager — Marketing and Sales of Aroma
Chemicals

Mr. Yan, aged 57, General Manager of the Marketing
and Sales of Aroma Chemicals, Mr. Yan holds a
Bachelor's degree in Engineering. Mr. Yan has 35 years
work experience in Canada, Hong Kong and China.
Before joining the Group in May 2004, he worked for
eight years in a well-known software company in Hong
Kong, for positions in marketing, sales, servicing and
administrative departments.

Mr. XIAO Liyuan

Aroma Chemicals Operations Manager

Mr. Xiao, aged 54, Director of Aroma Chemicals
Operations. Before joining the Group in February
2001, he was the deputy manager in a large chemical
enterprise. Mr. Xiao has more than 36 years experience of
production management.

Mr. TU Hongbin

Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager

Mr. Tu, aged 50, Aroma Chemicals R&D Manager, who
received a Ph.D degree in 1995 from Beijing Institute of
Technology. After the postdoctoral research experience
with Professor Alan.R.Katritzky at University of Florida of
USA (2001-2004), he joined Ecogreen in May 2005.
He has more than 14 years experience in organic
synthesis and methodology including 3 years preparation
and production of Heterocyclic compounds.

Mr. LAM Kwok Kin

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Lam, aged 44, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. He holds o
Bachelor's degree in accountancy and is a fellow
member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in October
2003, he worked with an international accounting firm for
seven years and was the financial controller and company
secrefary of a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam has extensive experience in auditing, accounting,
budgeting and company secretarial work.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEER®RE

The Board acknowledges the importance of and benefit
from good corporate governance practices and is
committed to improving the corporate governance
practices in order to enhance better transparency and
to ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper manner to safeguard
the interests of shareholders.

The Company's corporate governance practices are
based on the principles (the “Principles”) and code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company has complied with the Code Provisions
under and the Corporate Governance Code as sef out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for Code
Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7. The following summarises the
Company's corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of:
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii] reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Company's Directors and senior
management, (iii) reviewing and monitoring the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (iv] developing,
reviewing and monitoring codes of conduct and
compliance manuals (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and Directors; and [v] reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and company secretary
of the Company in compliance with the CG Code
and the Listing Rules. Further, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Group's policies and practices and noted
that the Group had complied with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements in all material respects during
the year under review. The Board also reviewed the
employees’ manual applicable to the employees of the
Company. lastly, the Board has reviewed the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure of this
Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading
the Group in a responsible and effective manner. The
Board provides leadership and formulates strategic
policies and plans of the Group with a view to enhancing
shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of
the Group, including: objectives and overall strategies of
the Group; annual budgets and financial matters; equity
related transactions such as issue of shares/options and
repurchase of shares; dividend; raising of capital loan;
determination of major business strategy; merger and
acquisition; major investment; annual financial budget in
turnover, profitability and capital expenditure; review and
approval of financial performance and announcement;
and matters as required by laws and ordinance.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board
and the various Committees with adequate information in
a timely manner fo enable the members to make informed
decisions. Each Director has separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management to acquire
more information than is volunteered by management
and to make further enquiries if necessary. The functions
delegated to management are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered info by the management.

Composition and role

Through out the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Board comprises a total of nine members including five
executive Directors, one non-executive Director (the
"NED”) and three independent non-executive Directors (the

“INEDs"), as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Llin Zhigang

NED
Mr. Feng Tao (Vice Chairman)

INED

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
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The Board (continued)

Composition and role (continued)

The three INEDs represent one-third of the Board. In
addition, three of the INEDs together have substantial
experience in fields of auditing, legal matters, business,
accounting, corporate internal control and regulatory
affairs. The Board’'s composition covers a balance of
expertise, skills and industry experience so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development
of the Group’s business. Through active participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all NED and INEDs make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Group.

The INEDs also serve the important function of ensuring
and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. During the year, the Board met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The INEDs are
explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.

The Board considers that each INED is independent in
character and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independence criteria as required by the Llisting Rules.
Though Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ("Mr. Yau") and Mr. Wong
Yik Chuen John ["Mr. Wong") have been appointed as
the INEDs of the Company for more than nine years,
the Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation or confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules and they have
not engaged in any executive management of the Group.
Taking into consideration of their independent scope
of work in the past years, the Directors consider they
are independent under the Listing Rules despite the fact
that they have served the Company for more than nine
years. The Board believes that Mr. Yau and Mr. Wong's
continued tenure brings considerable stability to the Board
and the Board has benefited greatly from the presence of
them who has over time gained valuable insight info the

Group.
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The Board (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to
discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group. The Chairman is
primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all
directors. Notices of regular board meetings are served
to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings
while reasonable notice is generally given for other
Board meetings and the directors can include matters
for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda
and accompanying board papers in respect of regular
board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board
committees are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the
respective meetings and all directors have access to board
papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information in a timely manner, which enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed
before it.

A total of 4 board meetings were held during the year.
The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and
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the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December T
2017 is set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
LR/ BIEEAY
Ful
Board Nomination Remuneration Audit

General meetings Committee Committee Committee

meeting 2RHEME meeting meetings meehngs
Name of Director BEiR RRAE EZES8E REZESEE HFHZE888 FHZE9E3
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITES
Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman] BRELE(ZE) 1/1 4/4 1/1 - -
Mr. Gong Xionghui EER L 1/1 4/4 - - -
Ms. Lu Jichua ERELL 1/1 4/4 - 1/ -
Mr. Hon Huan Guang BEREE 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/ -
Mr. lin Zhigang MEREE 1/1 4/4 - - -
NED FUTES
Mr. Feng Tao (Vice Chairman) EELE(ETE) 0/1 0/4 - - -
INED BUFHTES
Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung HEREL 1/ 3/4 0/1 0/1
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen FReEE 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEREE 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/
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The Board (continued)

Board meetings (continued)

According to current Board practice, any material
tfransaction which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from
voting and not fo be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving fransactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in
place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development
of the Company to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Through regular Board meetings and
emails all Directors are kept abreast of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.
During the year, the Directors have attended various
in-house briefings and internal or external seminars/
frainings, and have read internal or external newsletters,
updates and other reading materials covering topics such
as business of the Company, corporate governance,
industry knowledge, regulatory updates, finance and
management.

Appointment, rotation and re-election of Directors
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
all newly appointed Directors of the Company shall hold
office until the next general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term shall be subject to refirement
by rofation at least once every three years at the AGM.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the articles of
association of the Company, Mr. Yang Yirong, Mr. Feng
Tao and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, will retire as Directors
by rofation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as Directors at the AGM.

BExg(H)

Exges(#)
REAREEERR  AASREERRRES

) 2 # 5R ZEKS&%?HEE%%AIET MEFS
ERTUEELERE - ARARZARAGERA
AT BB IGRURE %%E?ﬁt}&%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁ%@?ﬁ
ATHEEAEDR 2R R - WARERER
BFABBRERIETEAHA -

EEEI

BERNEACESHEEBEABEXZEARES 2
H ERAFFAEMBIMERAAN  UBRRES
HARR 2 EBREETBRE 2B - AR5
PHBEERETHRBNREBEERTE T 2BE -
FEN ARFINLCHRNESREFENBLE
¥R o

ARBRFRAEFREEFEERETEARARAE
f%ié%b&%")?&zﬁ*%ﬁéﬂ A REREITHE
ERETH2NELTEZNRBEH  SEEAXH

DRERRRZEE  XBEHRER - AF
Z i%ﬂﬁf‘ﬁﬁllﬁ* EE VA EE SR

g/ YR HEANIF I ER B - R
&E@Eﬁ‘%ﬁﬂ# CRETENARRER  F
BORCITHEMNE  EEEH - UBKRERE -

EXZT HERIREER

REARFNERMAR  SREEERTENH
B ANEHBEETERRRERIL X

NeEBERBRERE BUEERBAREEHZ
é%/ﬁﬁd‘i_ﬁf%ﬁx%%ﬁiﬁ@iﬁ@%&&—
RIESFAESEEIT -

REBEARNAF 2 BEEIZAAIZE 108(A) 5k - 155K E

EE - BBEEREREAERNERBFRE
WERTES  ERSNEERLMBEBERET
B=-

EcoGreen Infernational Group Limited 18R EE B R A A



The Board (continued)

Term of appointment of NED and INEDs

All NED and INEDs were appointed for an initial term
of not more than one year and will be renewable
automatically for successive term of one year until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party or the other. All NED and INEDs
are subject fo refirement by rotation once every three years
and are subject to reelection.

Segregation of Roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”)

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and CEO should be separate and would not
be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with
the title CEO. At present, Mr. Yang Yirong, being
the Chairman and the President of the Company, is
responsible for the strategic planning, formulation of
overall corporate development policy and running the
business of the Group as well as the duties of Chairman.
The Board considers that, due to the nature and extent of
the Group's operations, Mr. Yang is the most appropriate
chief executive because he possesses in-depth knowledge
and experience in fine chemicals business and is able to
ensure the sustainable development of the Group. Besides,
he is the founder, the chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the Group since its establishment and
till now. Notwithstanding the above, the Board will
review the current structure from time fo time. When
at the appropriate time and if candidate with suitable
leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be
identified within or outside the Group, the Company may
make the necessary amendments.

Company Secretary

The company secrefary of the Company, Mr. Llam Kwok
Kin, is responsible for ensuring that board procedures
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
and advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
He is also responsible for taking and keeping minutes of
all Board and board committee meetings. Draft version of
minutes is normally circulated to the Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version of which is open for the Director’s inspection.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for
keeping all Directors updated on Listing Rules, regulatory
requirements and internal codes of conduct of the
Company. He has attained no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.
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The Board (continued)

Indemnification

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
officers. The Board reviews the extent of this insurance
annually.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company's affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The chairmen of the committees will report the findings
and recommendations of the committees to the Board
after each meeting. The minutes of all meetings of the
committees are circulated to the Board for information.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 2004. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, its members comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Yau Fook Chuen (the chairman of
the committee), Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung and Mr. Wong
Yik Chung, John, in which Mr. Yau Fook Chuen possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member
has broad commercial experience and there is a suitable
mix of expertise in accounting, business and legal on the
Audit Committee. The composition and members of the
Audit Committee complies with the requirements under
Rule 3.21 of the listing Rules. The new written ferms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee were adopted in March 2017 to
conform fo the provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company's website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's
financial reporting and other information to shareholders,
the system of internal controls, risk management and the
effectiveness and objectiveness of the audit process. The
Audit Committee also provides an important link between
the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under
review the independence and objectivity of the auditors.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee [continued)

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held
three meetings with the senior management to review,
consider and approve the interim and annual financial
statements, discuss internal controls matters and the re-
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed the Group’s accounting principles
and practices, Llisting Rules and statutory compliance and
financial reporting matters.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2004.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, its current
members comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wong Yik
Chung, John (the chairman of the committee), Dr. Lin David
Ying Tsung and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen and two executive
Directors, Mr. Han Huan Guang and Ms. Lu Jiohua.

The majority members are INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee advises the Board on the Group's overall
policy and structure for the remuneration of directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his associate is involvedin
deciding his own remuneration. The new terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted
in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the New
CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s
website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors,
the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
tfime commitment and responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee held one meetings to review and consider
the remuneration policy and packages, including any
discretionary management bonus of the Executive
Directors and senior management by reference to market
conditions, performance of the Group and the individual
and corporate goals.
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Board Committees (continued)

Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments of the senior management of the Group
fell within the following band:

EEZREE(HA)
EREEEHMN - ZEACHER
AEEBREREOHEE TIAABER :

Remuneration bands [ e ] Number of individuals
AE
2017 2016
—E-—L£F A
Below HK$500,000 PS8 500,0007T A T 2 4
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 TTEBH,000,0007T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 -~ HK$1,500,000 ~  ®1,000,001 EE&#1 5000002 2 1
7 7

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, its current
members comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Yang Yirong (the chairman of the Committee)] and Mr.
Han Huan Guang and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Yau
Fook Chuen, Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung and Mr. Wong
Yik Chung, John. The majority members are independent
non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee has
the duty of reviewing annually the board structure and
composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were
adopted in March 2012 to confirm fo the provision of
the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the
Company's website.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year to review the structure, size and composition, and
assessing the independence of the INEDs.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The management provides such explanation and
information to the Board to facilitate an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial
statements which give a true and fair view and the
statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 46 to 53.
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Responsibilities in Respect of the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
inferim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. Meanwhile, the Directors
are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and
that judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating fo events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. The Board has prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
the Directors’ securities transactions on terms not less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all
Directors and all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with all the relevant requirements as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2017.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility
for evaluating and defermining the nature and extent of the
risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Board
oversees management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The systems and internal controls can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks of the Group. Business units are responsible for
identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units. The results of evaluation will
be reported to management through regular internal
meetings. Each year, management prepares the
risk assessment report listing the risks identified and
management’s assessment on the impact to the Group. The
Board discusses findings in the risk assessment report and
evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system in Board meeting.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

[continued)

The Group handles and disseminates inside information
with due care. Staff is required to comply with the
confidentiality terms inside the staff manual. Only
personnel at appropriate level can get reach of price
sensitive and inside information.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded
against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in
accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.

The Group does not have an internal audit function
due to the size of the Group and for cost effectiveness
consideration. During the year under review, the Board
conducted reviews of the internal control systems of the
Company from time to time and considered that such
the internal control systems of the Company had been
implemented effectively. The reviews covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
confrols and risk management functions. The Board
also considered the Group's adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in its accounting
and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget. The Group continues fo review
the need for an internal audit function annually.

External Auditor

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external
auditor of the Company received approximately RMB2.18
million for audit services provided to the Group.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting mostly
the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders. Information will be communicated
to shareholders through: (i) continuous disclosure to the
Stock Exchange of all material information; (ii) periodic
disclosure through the annual and interim reports; |iii
notices of meetings and explanatory material; (iv) the
annual general meetings and other general meetings; and
(v) the Company’s website at www.ecogreen.com.

Bk EERAIBERE ()

AEBERBEREMBERARHES - BT HEET
BETFMPNREGRSR -EEERNNAETE
EERBEBRGRERLATER

AEBRTILHIRIEEWBRMEEIEEIE - AR
REERIRE  HETEEARRE - £ET
R ST AVERARR AR RIAAR B - I B RIBERE & &1
ERMEEREREFE A NP EMEFTCER -

ERAEENRBEARERAY S - AEBILE
R A BETBAE - ROBEFEAR  EFgEL
TREYARRR 2 NEEERFETRT LR RZ
RRWA BT - ZRA B2 HEANEE -
BREME  2ERERERLAREEE - &
FeNERAKE G MY FHERBEEHNERT
WRERBTIMELRER - U REFIIRER
BE - AREESFUERIEEFERLARNE
AHEEE

ShES R RU A
F7 - AR R BRI SR GE B A AR S AR
B R BRFEBMODARE218ETT -

BRRz2BE

R-T——F=F ARARK-EBRRBER
R HETBRBRAQT B ATERREBNHOE -
ARBFEBATREFMBREERES © (I)RE
RIFFBEREMEERER : (@BFRETH
WMEFETHERE (| KEBE RHAAME  (iv)
BREBFREREMKRRRE © R(v)AAB ML

Www.ecogreen.com °

EcoGreen Infernational Group Limited 18R EE B R A A



Communication with Shareholders(continued)

General Meeting

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation.
The Chairman of the Board attended the AGM held in
2017 (2017 AGM") to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders. The external auditor also attended
the annual general meeting to answer questions of
shareholders.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, INEDs and NED
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Feng
Tao was unable to attend the 2017 AGM due to other
important engagements. All other INEDs and NED had
attended the 2017 AGM to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.

Voting by poll

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election
of individual directors. In addition, poll voting procedure
is included in the circular to shareholders dispatched
together with the annual report and will be explained
during the proceedings of meetings. Poll results will be
posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company subsequent to the close of the shareholders
meefing.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management has maintained close communication with
shareholders and investors through email, conference
call, one-on-one meetings, attending broker conferences,
and non-deal roadshows, to ensure that investors and
shareholders have received the Company’s updates in a
fair and timely manner and to facilitate their investment
decision-making. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner. To promote effective
communication, the Company also maintains website
(www.ecogreen.com) where extensive information and
updates on the Company's business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares
have the same voting rights and are entitled to the
dividend declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set
out in Company's Atticles of Association. Shareholders
of the Company can: (i) convene an exfraordinary
general meeting; [ii) put forward enquiries to the board
of directors; [iii) put forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings; and (iv) propose Directors for election. Details
of relevant procedures are available on the Company's
website.

Constitutional Documents
There was no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2017,
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The directors (the "Directors”) of EcoGreen International
Group Llimited (the "Company”) submit their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities, geographical analysis of
operations and business review

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 2
to 14 of this annual report.

Final results
The final results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 54.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary
share was paid to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) on 1 December 2017. The Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.3
cenfs per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2017. Together with the interim dividend, this will bring
the total dividend distribution to HK4.8 cents (2016:
HK4.8 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 8 June 2018 (the "AGM"), the proposed
final dividend will be paid on or about 10 July 2018 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 22 June 2018.
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Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 24(a) to
the consolidated financial statements. Shares were issued
during the year upon exercise of share options and the
placing of new shares.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to RMB497,399,000 (2016:
RMB349,207,000).

Equity linked agreements — share options

granted to directors and selected employees
Details of the share options granted in prior years is set out
in Note 24(b) to the consolidated financial statements and
"Share options” section contained in this Directors’ Report.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
issued 18,590,000 shares at a price of HK$1.29 each
pursuant to the exercise of 18,590,000 share options.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s

listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
had not redeemed and neither the Company nor any of ifs
subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's
listed securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
fo offer new shares on a prorata basis fo existing
shareholders.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assefs and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, restated and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 150. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis sections,
the Company is exposed to the following key risks and
uncertainties which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 laws of Hong
Kong).

Raw Material Risk

The Group's business is dependent on the supply and
cost of raw materials and any disruption in the supply
or fluctuation in the prices of such raw materials could
materially and adversely affect the Group’s business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Operational Risk

The Group's production facilities emit pollutants and are
subject to various environmental protection laws and
regulations in China. Any change fo, or failure by the
Group to comply with, environmental protection laws or
regulations may cause the Group to incur additional costs
and expenses. In addition, if the production facilities of
the Group experience power, steam or water shortages,
the Group's business and results of operations may be
harmed.

Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies in a time of weak economic performance. To
minimize credit risks, the management of the Group has
appointed dedicated staff members to handle procedures
for determining credit limits, credit approval and other
monitoring procedures, to ensure follow-up with all
receivables in a timely manner. In addition, the Group
reviews the collectability of receivables at the end of
a reporting period, to ensure that sufficient impairment
losses are provided for in respect of uncollectible monies.
Details of the credit risks are set out in Note 3.1(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and
maintains cash and cash equivalents at a level which is
considered by the management as sufficient, to satisfy the
needs arising from the Group's operations and to mitigate
the effect of fluctuations of cash flow. The management
closely monitors the use of borrowings to ensure that
relevant covenants relating to loans are complied with.
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Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency borrowings, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group manages and monitors foreign
exchange exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group may enter into several interest rate swap and
foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate the risks as
necessary. Details of the currency risk are sef out in Note
3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings. It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rafe of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. Details of the interest
rate risk are set out in Note 3.1(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group emphasizes in environmental protection during
its production process and adopts various measures to
ensure its duties of profecting the environment. The Group
continues to update the requirements of the relevant
environmental laws and regulations applicable to it to
ensure compliance. The Group does not produce material
waste nor emit material quantities of pollutants during
its production process. During the year under review,
the Group has complied with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations applicable to it in all material
respects, including waste water emission permit, gas
emission permit and others. The Group has also adopted
measures in order to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. The measures
include wastewater and gas emission managements,
noise control, greenhouse gas emission and resources
management.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group continues fo update the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations in various countries,
particularly in the PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to
ensure compliance. Substantially a majority of the Group's
assefs are located in the PRC and the Group's revenue is
mainly derived from operations in the PRC. The Group was
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on @ March
2004. During the year under review, the Group complied
with the relevant laws and regulations in various countries
applicable to it in all material respects.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up fo
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Mr. Gong Xionghui
Ms. Lu Jiahua
Mr. Han Huan Guang
Mr. Llin Zhigang
Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung
(redesignated on 28 March 2018)

Non-executive Director (“NED(s)”)
Mr. Feng Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Yang Yirong, Mr. Feng Tao
and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The NEDs and INEDs were appointed for an initial
term of not more than one year and will be renewable
automatically for successive term of one year until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Appointment of INEDs

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
INEDs are independent.

Biographical details of Directors and senior

management
Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 15 to 19.
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Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are significant

in relation to the Company’s business

No fransactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relafion to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of ifts subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company and the Director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or af any time
during the year.

Employment and remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 414
employees [2016: 433 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 were approximately
RMB48.95 million and approximately RMB52.66 million,
respectively. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the top five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in Notes 36 and Q(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has established its human resources policies
and procedures with a view to deploying the incentives
and rewards of the remuneration system. The remuneration
package offered to the staff is appropriate for the duties
and in line with the prevailing market terms. Staff benefits,
including medical coverage and provident funds, are
provided to employees. The Group has also established
effective performance evaluation system in which
employees are properly rewarded on a performance-
related basis under the Group's salary and bonus
system. The Group has adopted a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the management, key technician and other eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

Pension schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group
are set out in Note Q(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

Directors’ interest in competing businesses

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors was
interested in any business apart from the business of the
Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provisions

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director and officer of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all costs,
charges, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution or holding
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained
insurance for the Directors against liabilities to third parties
that may be incurred in the course of performing their
duties as at the date of this report.

Maijor customers and suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest
and the five largest customers were 10% and 33%,
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's largest and the five largest suppliers were 15%
and 33%, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company, which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

Related party transactions

The related party transactions conducted during the year
under review as disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements did not constitute connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any specified
undertaking of the Company or any other

associated corporation

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations [within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO)J, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
adopted by the Company contained in the Listing Rules, to
be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

(a)

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each in the Company at 31 December 2017

EERTRARRAQTARNDANEM
ERACEREMNEtERELIEZR
7 HEROREEE2ERR KR

RZE—+tF+_HA=1+—8 ARFES=EkK&
BITERABRARR S EEMAEEZE(TERFE
FREERA([FHRBEKRG ) EBEXVE) 2%
- HERDREERZEY  HEREBEESFNMEAE
IRBIEXVELE 7 R 8D EE RME AR T MR 2
BmsoRE (BRIERERES ME R 2 ZFIEX
FEWEESIRBER 2 ERIAR) » HELA
RARBRBEEZEFRBEROEIS2HEFEZE
R EEIOAR - FARE ETRAEHERR
AR 2 IR ESFRIZBEMNE RN G R R T2 B
SRR ¢

R-ZB—tHF+ZA=+—HBEEX
NABREEC.IETEERZER

(a)

Number of shares held

FERBEE

% of the

issued share

capital of the

Company

Personal Corporate RN

interests interests Total BET

Name of Directors EEpng BARER LEEE @t BRAF 2L

Mr. Yang Yirong BRETLE 528,000 278,049,687 278,577,687 35.94%
(Note i) (H&Ei)

Mr. Gong Xionghui EYid bt 2,706,000 15,006,315 17,712,315 2.29%
(Note ii) (B &Fii)

Ms. Lu Jichua ERXRERL 2,046,000 11,254,736 13,300,736 1.72%
[Note iii) (H&Eiii)

Mr. Han Huan Guang RN A 1,584,000 — 1,584,000 0.20%

Mr. Lin Zhigang MEREE 2,376,000 — 2,376,000 0.31%

Mr. Feng Tao BELE 1,584,000 — 1,584,000 0.20%

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen EE2EAE 396,000 — 396,000 0.05%

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEREE 132,000 - 132,000 0.02%
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Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and

short positions in shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any specified

undertaking of the Company or any other

associated corporation (continued)

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each in the Company at 31 December 2017

[continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Yang Yirong is deemed to be interested in
278,049,687 shares of the Company held by Marietta
Limited by virtue of it being controlled by Mr Yang
Yirong.

(i) Mr. Gong Xionghui is deemed to be interested in
15,006,315 shares of the Company held by Dragon
Kingdom Investment Limited by virtue of it being
controlled by Mr Gong Xionghui.

(iii) Mes. Lu Jiahua is deemed to be interested in 11,254,736
shares of the Company held by Sunwill Investments
Limited by virtue of it being controlled by Ms Lu Jiahua.

(b) Derivative to ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

in the Company

Share options, being unlisted physically settled
equity derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary
shares of the Company were granted to
Directors, chief executives, employees and certain
participants pursuant to the share option schemes
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
general meetings held on 16 February 2004 and
28 May 2014. Information in relation fo these
share options during the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in "Share options” section
contained in this Directors’ Report.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the
year, the Directors and chief executives [(including
their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) had any interest in, or had been granted,
or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares
or warrants or debentures of the Company, its
specified undertakings and its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to
the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

(c) Nominees shares of the Company’s
subsidiaries held in trust
A Director also hold nominee shares of certain
subsidiaries held in trust for the Group solely for the
purpose of ensuring that the relevant subsidiary has
more than one member.
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EXEHRE

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any specified
undertaking of the Company or any other

associated corporation (continued)

Other than those interests disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or ifs
other associated corporations a party to any arrangement
fo enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its specified undertakings or other associated
corporation.

Share options

Share options are granted to Directors, executives,
employees and business partners at the invitation of the
Directors under the old share option scheme and the
new share option scheme (collectively the “Schemes”)
approved by shareholders at general meetings held on
16 February 2004 and 28 May 2014, respectively. The
Schemes are designed to motivate executives and key
employees and other persons who make a contribution
to the Group and enable the Group to attract and retain
individuals with experience and ability and to reward
them for their past contributions.

The share options were granted at nil consideration. An
option may Ee accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option and the
amount payable on acceptance of the grant of an option
is HK$ 1.

The exercise price of the granted options is not less than
the highest of:) (a) the closing price of the shares on the
date of the grant; (b) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant; and (c) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one share of the Company. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised; the share options have a
contractual option term of 10 years.

The Company can issue share options so that the total
number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under all the share option schemes
does not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the date o?opprovoﬂ of the new share option scheme.
The Company may renew this limit at any time, subject to
shareholders” approval and the issue of a circular and in
accordance with the Listing Rules provided that the number
of shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all the
share option schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time.
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Share options (continued)

As at 18 April 2018, share options to subscribe for a tofal
of 24,777,000 option shares were still outstanding under
the Schemes which represent approximately 3.2% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company.

The Schemes shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from the approval of the respective
schemes.

The following table discloses details of share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2017 under the Schemes
and the movements during the year.

Directors’ Report

ESERE

BREE)
R-Z—N\FMOA+N\B - REERAETBIDE
T8 AR T RAB AR 1D 4 $£24,777, 0008 - f&
AARERITEBRLI.2% o

BBt B ARG BB AR 1 OF AR B -

TERBMA-E—+F+=A=+—AREE 2
CESSEFA T BT ETC P LR

Adjusted
balance os ot Balance os ot
1 January 31 December
Adjusted 017 Granted Erercised Lopsed/ 017
eercise  Doteof  Exercisable Rog-tf during during Concelled ~ H=%-t%
price  grant period -F-H the year teyear  during theyear  +=A=1-A
Type of Grantee RRARN  EHEAEE  RUAE  GRE Gagrin ERRH FRAE  FRXN/EH 28
HKS (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
A1 Tif T T T T
Category 1 - Directors £Hl1-82
M. Yang Yirong ARRAE 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 647 - - - 647
Mr. Gong Xiongh i 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960 - - - 3,960
Ms. Ly Jiahua EXENT 170 1.12.2014 1.12.201430.11.2024 3960 - - - 3,960
Mr. Han Huan Guang BEEAE 170 1122014 1.12.201430.11.2024 3,960 - - - 3,960
M. Lin Zhigang Rl 170 1122014 1.12.2014:30.11.2024 3960 - - - 3,960
M. Yau Fook Chuen ER2%E 170 1122014 1.12.201430.11.2024 647 - - - 647
Mr. Wong Yk Chung, John BERRE 170 1.12.2014 1.12.201430.11.2024 647 - - - 647
Subtofcl It 17,781 - - - 17,781
Category 2 - §h2-
Erployessnderconiuows. 2R 129 1522014 1522014142204 16,59 - s . .
enloymentcond 4488 170 11014 L2004 30 . - . 3086
Subrtotol ) 21,626 - (18,590) - 3,036
Cotegory 3 - BA3-
Consuliants ER 170 1122014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960 - - - 3,960
Totol a3t 43367 - (18,590] - 1777
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2017, shareholders (other
than Directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required fo be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in
the Company

FERREXRQRARSD - HEARND 2 #
mRAR

RARBERNEETLRSTHRAERAM  R_F
—tFTZA=1+—8 RARFRODAHEER
DR HERAERERZ MR EXVEE2RINE
FEXARMARRRRE 2 EHIOAR - HELEAR
AEARBESLMEGRIIEIBOHRTFEZERL
Mz ERIARR ZBR(RNATEFTHRHITERA
BRI

RAQBSREECIETEBRZEFR

Number of shares held

FrERBEE
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company
Beneficial Corporate Investment RN
Name owner interests manager Total 2RfT
28 EZBEEA LEER REKE st RAB AL
Marietta Limited 278,049,687 - - 278,049,687 35.87%
(Note i)
GiED)
FMR LLC - - 66,118,800 66,118,800 8.53%
Guan Nian Trading limited 58,500,000 - - 58,500,000 7.55%
Kwok Ying Lan - 58,500,000 - 58,500,000 7.55%
PEE [Note ii]
(P 3Eil)
Platinum Investment Management Limited - - 48,251,278 48,251,278 6.23%
Notes: MEE -

(i) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Mariefta Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which was directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.

(ii)

These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Guan Nian Trading Llimited, the entire issued share
capifal of which was directly and beneficially owned by Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified by any persons, other than the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, who had inferest
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
ompany as at 31 December 2017.
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) ZER D LAMarietta Limited 2 2 & B © WHZA
AIEZEA © MMarietta Limited 2 282 2 17X A Bl
SRt s BEEE=ESR -

#ZZERR D LA Guan Nian Trading limited 2 Z#& &5
WHZ AR EZESR » M Guan Nian Trading Limited

(i)
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Corporate governance

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with most of the Corporate Governance Code confained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017, save for the deviations
from Code Provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code.
Information on the deviations and further information on
the Company's corporate governance Code is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” as set out on pages

20 to 32.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the

Company'’s issued shares at 18 April 2018.

Subsequent event
There are no significant events occurred after the balance
sheet date.

Auditor

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors
Yang Yirong
Chairman & President

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEMRE

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of EcoGreen International Group Limited
lincorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of EcoGreen
International Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 149,
which comprise:

J the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017;

J the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended:

J the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income for the year then ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a frue and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Net realisable value of inventories

. Impairment of intangible assets

(i)  Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 December 2017, inventories of the Group amounted
to RMB183.6 million. As described in the accounting
policies in note 2.10 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in determining the net
realisable value for inventories. Net realisable value is
defermined based upon a defailed analysis of inventories
aging on a product by product basis, with reference
to the current marketability and latest invoice prices of
the respective finished goods and the current market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Inventory has been written down by RMB4.7 million to
reduce the carrying value of certain inventories to their
estimated net realisable value as at 31 December 2017.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances

and the judgment involved by management in determining
the net realisable value of the inventories.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on net realisable value of inventories included:

- Understood and evaluated the appropriateness
and consistency of the basis management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories
by comparing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning, on a sample basis, to the realised
amount; and reviewing the level of inventory write-
offs during the year in relation to inventories loss.

- Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
inventories aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

- Performed audit analytics on inventories holding
and movement data to identify inventories with
indication of slow moving or obsolescence.

- Checked the utilisation of inventories by production
subsequent to the year, on a sample basis, for the
appropriateness of the associated provision made.

— Compared the carrying amounts, on a sample
basis, of inventories to their net realisable value
through a review of sales subsequent to the year
end to check for completeness of the associated
provision. Where there are no subsequent sales
of the respective products after the year end,
we challenged management as to the realisable
value of the products, corroborating explanations
with the aging, sales orders, historical margins
and marketability of the respective inventories, as
appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumptions of management in relation fo the assessment on
the net realisable value of inventories to be supportable by
available evidence.

(ii)

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

Impairment of intangible assets

As at 31 December 2017, carrying amount of the
Group's intangible assets amounted to RMB122.5 million.
As described in the accounting policies in note 2.7 to
the consolidated financial statements, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment.
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The Group's intangible assets represent development costs
incurred on the designing, constructing and tfesting for
new or improved products and processes of production.
Management judgment is required in identifying whether
there are indicators that intangible assets are impaired;
and in the determination of their recoverable amounts,
which is primarily based on the expectation of future sales
of the relevant underlying products and the current market
conditions. Accumulated impairment charge of RMB24.5
million has been recorded to reduce the carrying amounts
of cerfain intangible assets to their recoverable amounts as

at 31 December 2017.

We focused on this area due fo the size of the balances
and the judgment involved by management in determining
the recoverable amounts of the intangible assets.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on infangible assets included:

—  Checked the accuracy of the carrying amount of
each intangible asset against the books and records.

- Understood and evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of the basis for management used in
identifying impairment indicafor and estimating such
impairment provision by comparing the forecasted
sales and gross margin prepared by management
for the respective products against their historical
performance, production plans and confirmed sales
orders, where relevant.

- Where historical pattern was not demonstrated by
those newer products, we challenge management
as to their sales projections including pricing,
corroborating explanations with the price of similar
products in the market and sales quotations, where
available, and the underlying marketability study
documentation.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumptions of management in relation to impairment
assessment on intangible assefs to be supportable by
available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
v WR R

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee

for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
fo continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Audltor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Fmoncial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
It we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group fo cease to
continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mak Tze Leung, William.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement — by Function of Expense
SRR - RERAKIIEESIER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZE=_Z—+F+ZA=T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T AR®ET T
Revenue WA 5 1,571,382 1,632,779
Cost of sales SHE R A 8 (1,236,918) (1,231,933
Gross profit Es] 334,464 400,846
Other gains — net H b Wam — 5 6 258 4,359
Selling and marketing costs Y E N TS B AN 8 (26,876) (32,099)
Administrative expenses THER 8 (71,187) (71,855)
Operating profit ey 236,659 301,251
Finance income Bz 7 26,095 26,079
Finance expenses B35 E 7 (20,413) (107,207)
Net finance income/(expenses) B (BR) S5 7 5,682 (81,128)
Share of profit/flosses) of associates = MAEMERE (BEIBE e 307 ... 1389
Profit before taxation B A5 A1 242,648 219,737
Taxation #iiE 12 (58,881) (74,229)
Profit for the year FERE 183,767 145,508
Profit atftributable to: AEEBR
Owners of the Company RKATEEE 183,767 145,383
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M R - 125
183,767 145,508
Earnings per share attributable to FESRKERE
owners of the Company for the year RARBEEE
[expressed in RMB per share) (BRAARESITR)
— Basic — 5K 13 26.81 Centsflll  22.35 Centsfll
— Diluted — 5 13 26.78 Centsfli 22.26 Centsflli

The above consolidated income statement should be read — _EiliE GFF) 3K FE B2 BT 7 — HFBI 78 o
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
atEakER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B#EZ =T —+F+—A=1T—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
LiEsg ARBTFT ARETFT
Profit for the year FENE 183,767 145,508
Other comprehensive loss: Hipfra Bk :
Item that may be reclassified to HIZRIBEHE B R A4
profit or loss #EmIEH
Currency translation differences HNEITE R (227) (45)
Other comprehensive loss FEEHMRAERX
e dty/c o BE 227 43),
Total comprehensive income REEIRA W= B
for the year 183,540 145,463
Attributable to: =B
Owners of the Company NARERE 183,540 145,338
Non-controlling interests SE4R R RS - 125
Total comprehensive income FEEFREKEARE
for the year 183,540 145,463

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive it & H4R 4 Wnzs sk pE B p s — B0 3E -
income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying nofes.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

BHfEERER

As at 31 December 2017 R=—Z—+F+_-_A=+—~H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARETT AR®ET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Land use rights T Hb{E AR 15 40,323 41,276
Property, plant and equipment WME - BENEE 16 293,103 323,240
Intangible assets WA E 17 122,499 82,620
Investment in an associate BB 11 7,730 7,423
Loan to an associate BMEREE 35 3,000 -
Deferred income tax assets REFTIS & BE 29 5,470 5,470
Availablefor-sale financial assets AL ESREE 18 200 200
Prepayments TR 21 84,653 =
556,978 460,229
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 22 183,572 114,157
Trade receivables and bills J7EE UK B TR N R Lk 2 4
receivable 20 523,152 691,223
Prepayments and other receivables a1 2k R H A FE AR R 21 207,974 233,599
Amounts due from related JRE Wk A B U5 R IR
companies 35 2,415 39
Loan to an associate BEHEE 35 - 3,000
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 19 39 1,582
Pledged bank deposits BB ZIBITER 23 57,254 60,498
Shortterm bank deposits RHRSRTT K 23 16,550 22,650
Cash and cash equivalents B RESZEEY 23 1,888,712 1,563,170
2,879,668 2,689,918
Total assets BMEE 3,436,646 3,150,147
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners EEFEREQAEEE
of the Company
Share capital [N 24 75,380 65,237
Share premium P& AR (B 24 341,876 202,474
Other reserves Hi 25 155,103 158,818
Retained earnings {R2 E=F| 1,339,043 1,180,406
Total equity RS 1,911,402 1,606,935
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

EHEERER

As at 31 December 2017 R=—Z—+F+_-_A=+—8H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—REF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
s AR¥T AREF T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings == 28 449,385 222,152
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSHAE 29 65,400 57,900
,,,,,,,, 514,785 280,052
Current liabilities FREBAE
Trade payables and bills payable FEA BR 2 B PR 22 4% 26 190,256 182,231
Current income tax liabilities BEAFRERi B & 16,189 19,879
Borrowings (=% 28 764,914 989,556
Derivative financial instruments TESLRTEA 19 - 5,533
Amounts due to related companies FE ST RERS: 7T 2R 35 687 8,587
Accruals and other payables FEEtE A R EMER R 27 38,383 57,353
Amount due to a director ERT—EE I 35 30 21
777777 1,0]0,459 1,263,160
Total liabilities we®me . 1,525,244 ______ ]__?_4_?__2_1_?__
Total equity and liabilities HEXKRAE 3,436,646 3,150,147

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in Ll A HEEABREENTE—HEHE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statfements on pages 54 to 149  ES54Z 49BN EHMBBMRER T —\F=
were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March BZ++tHARBFSHUK - THEFFRKEE -
2018 and were signed on its behalf.

YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
R ExE
Chairman Executive director
FE HITEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RSB R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZE=_Z—+F+ZA=T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRNEATREE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capifal ~ premium reserves  earnings Tofal interests eq&ity
Bx  BARE  HftRE  REEA @ FEHMER s
RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETR ARMTR ARWTR ARETn ARETR ARETR
Boonce of 1 Jonuary 2016 R-B-AR-A-Rzel AT R Y e T
Comprehensive income Gaks
Profit for the year EEFE - - - 145,383 145,383 125 145,508
Other comprehensive income Aok
Currency franslation differences NEREER - - (4] - (49) - (43]
elepEalelipe | SEMEETEE S S
Transactions with owners in ARBFAENHMAEN
their capacity as owners SRETNRS
ssue of shares [Note 24) FBA(HE2) 9040 (1,23 - - 8,702 - 8,702
Employees share option scheme: [EERRETE
- Vialue of share option granted -BHBREBE - - 3,435 - 3,435 - 3,435
- Value of share options exercised —(TbBERE EE = = (3,658) 3,658 - - -
Change in non-controlling inferests in equity: FERBk IR 7 28) :
- Equity acquired by the Group from - AEERIEERED
non-controlling interests (Note 37) WER 2 12 (Wi5E37) - - (193) - (193) (2,807) (3,000)
2015 final d'\vigend “S-REZRERS = = = (11,817) (11,817) = (11,817)
2016 interim dividend “E2RE7RARE = - - (7.937) 7.937) - (7.93/]
Transfer from refained eamings (Note 25)  RE B &R (H:25) = = 1,931 (1,931) - - =
Total transactions with owners HERFEENENAEN
_intheir copaciy asowners ! SEEARANEE pen s 09 W W e e
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-E-~"E+-A=1-H
i 65,237 202,474 158,818 1,180,406 1,606,935 - 1,606,935
ey stly RES-LE-AHZGM 607 oA IMBELIR0MG1STS L
Comprehensive income Galki
Profit for the year FREAE - - - 183767 183767 - 183767
Other comprehensive income Afra ki
Currency translation differences NEFEEE - - (227) - (227) - (227)
Totlconpetenshe income or 017 “ELEEAKEAR S o wie s LS
Transcctions with owners ARGMAENHMAEY
in their capacity as owners SREMHRS
Issue of shares (Note 24] Bi1hdn (H24) 10,143 139,402 - - 19545 - 19545
Employees share opfion scheme: [EERRETE
- Vialue of share option granted -RiBRE EE - - 142 - 142 - 142
- Value of share options exercised -IFEEREZBRE - - (3,971) 3971 - - -
2016 final dividend N ERBRE - - - (20171) (20,171) - (20,171
2017 inferim dividend “E-tEZHRERE - - - (8,589) (8,589) - (8,589)
Transfer from refained earings (Note 25 RERHER (Fz25) - - 341 (341) - - -
Total transactions with owners RRERFREENEFEEN
_intheir copaciy asowners i 048 1va By B 0% L
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-2-t£+-A=t-H
Fp 75380 341876 155103 1339043 1911402 - 1911402
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity it & GfiE 55 Bhk fE ERFH 55 —OFRIAE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

EcoGreen Infernational Group Limited 18R EE B R A A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHEAESRER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE=ZFT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5E ARBT T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBHEESRE
Cash generated from operations BTSSR S 31(a) 416,814 78,067
Interest paid BNFE (55,318) (58,210
Income fax paid BEATFTISH (55,071) (62,5606)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEBFE, (FTA)
operating activiies AeFw 306,425 | (42,709)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRESFRE
Payments for the acquisition of SIS L b AR
land use rights - (17)
Additions to property, plant and WM - BRE KRR E
equipment (95,838) (40,208)
Additions to intangible assefs T8 B AN (51,725) (8,514)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term WHISRTTE R
bank deposits B, (48h0) 6,100 (7,114
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 #EIFRITEZOR L 3,244 9,385
Interest received 2 U F & 26,095 26,079
Net cash used in investing activities H&EEBHMARSHES (112124) | [20,389]
Cash flows from financing activities  BEZEEBHEESRE
Proceeds from borrowings BEMER 31(b) 1,692,079 704,620
Repayments of borrowings EsEs 31(b) (1,681,405) (496,115)
Increase/|decrease) in amount FE—EEERIEE N (L)
due to a director 31(b) 9 (727)
Dividends paid P& B ST A (28,760) (19,754)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITRRAD P18 3k 149,545 8,702
Net cash generated from BRERBAEREFE
_financing activities 131,468 196,726
Net increase in cash and cash HERBESSEYRMFLE
equivalents 325,769 133,628
Cash and cash equivalents FzREMREEEY
at beginning of the year 1,563,170 1,429,587
Exchange losses on cash and B RSB IENBL
cash equivalents (227) (45)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEASRASEZEY
at end of the year 23 1,888,712 1,563,170
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be — _Eill& IR &R E R EEM T+ —FF50:E -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OB R M

1. General information

EcoGreen International Group Limited (“Ecogreen” or “the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and trading
of fine chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma
chemicals and pharmaceutical products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 3 March 2003 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY 1-
111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 5301, 53rd
Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi ("RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRS") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance Cap. 622.

(i) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for the available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss, which are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)  New and amended standards adopted by the
group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the

first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2017:

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on

or after

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Disclosure Initictive 1 Janvary 2017

HKAS 12 [Amendment|  Recognifion of Deferred Tax Asses for 1 January 2017
Unrealised Losses

HKFRS12 (Amendment) ~ Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities 1 Janvary 2017

The adoption of the above amendments to standards
has had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv]  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been issued but are not effective for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

Improvements to HKFRSs in relation fo HKAS 1 January 2018

Annual Improvements

2014 -2016 Cycle

28" Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures"

HKAS 28 [Amendment] Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2018

HKAS 40 [Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018

HKFRS 1 (Amendment] First Time Adoption of HKFRS 1 Jonuary 2018
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2014 - 201655 EBH BEUBREEN 2 HERE

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 [Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) 22

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

HK (IFRIC) 23

HKFRS 9 [Amendments)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments|

Classification and Measurement of
Sharebased Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Insfruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Clarifications fo HKFRS 15

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Improvements fo HKFRSs

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negafive
Compensation

leases

Insurance Contract

Sale or Contribution of Assefs between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

1 Jonuary 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2018
1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 Jonvary 2019
1 January 2019

1 January 2021
To be determined

The Group's assessment of the impact of these new
standards, amendments fo standards and interprefations is

set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv/  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
[continued)

(a)  HKFRS @, “Financial instruments”

Nature of change

HKFRS @ addresses the classification, measurement and

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,

introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new

impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities.
The Group does not expect the new guidance fo affect the
classification and measurement of the financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does
not have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have
been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not been
changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
(“ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the
case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assefs
classified at amortised cost, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. Based on the assessments
undertaken to date, the Group does not expect significant
increase or decrease in the loss allowance for trade
debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group's
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS @ must be applied for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the
new rules retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with
the practical expedients permitted under the standard.
Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

(b)  HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition
of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts and the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service transfers to
a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group's financial statements and does not
expect a significant impact on the recognition of revenue.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2018. The Group infends to adopt the standard
using the modified refrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in refained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

(c) HKFRS 16, “leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in

almost all leases being recognised on the consolidated

balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and

finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an

asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial

liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions

are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group's operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of RMB8,720,000 (Note 34 (b)). The Group estimates
those related to payments for short-term and low value
lease which will be recognised on straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss are insignificant.

However, the Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because
of the change in the definition of the lease term and
the different treatment of variable lease payments and
of extension and fermination options. It is therefore not
yet possible fo estimate the amount of rightof-use assets
and lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and how this may affect
the Group's profit or loss and classification of cash flows
going forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will
not restate comparative amounts for the year prior fo first
adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights o,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group's accounting policies.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non- controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assetfs in the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required

by HKFRS.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)  Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value af the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent seftlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non- controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the tofal
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity fransactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.

[c]  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
it the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

I the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.3 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of losses of associates’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
tfransactions between the Group and its associate
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)
2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the infernal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB"),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dafes of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the franslation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except when deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment

hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated income statement
within “other gains — net".
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (continued)

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated
in a foreign currency classified as available-forsale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security, and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as
available-forsale, are included in other comprehensive
income.

(c)]  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are franslated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions): and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

2.6.1 Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and machinery
pending installation, is stated at historical cost, which
includes construction expenditures incurred, cost of
machinery, and other direct costs capitalised during the
construction and installation period, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided
in respect of construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed. On completion, the
construction-in-progress is fransferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost less their residual values, where appropriate
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 30 to 40 years
Plant and machinery 510 15 years
Leasehold improvements 510 10 years
Office furniture and equipment 5to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5to 10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2.6.2 Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
fo its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.8]). Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within “other gains — net” in the consolidated
income statement.

2.7 Intangible assets

2.7.1 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria
are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b)  management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it

(c)  there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e)  adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the

infangible asset are available; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Annual Report 2017 —ZT—+HFFH

B Ot BRI

2. FEESTHERBEE)

26 ME - BERREE)

262 EEF - B KR (E

REFEARFT MAE(WER)EEZHRERA
ERFY - WEEREEBBEMGTAIKRE S
7 BB E < BREEAS BN R 2= A m] iy ] & 58 (Bt
i£2.8) o HEREL L BTSSR RAR E A &
iE R HRERAR e —FEE PR

27 EBREE

271 HERFHEKAR
MERARELRIIERS - BRAR RER
ARFTERNRREmcHAEBEREXNAERRE
mAERAERA TR ERRERDERFE
DNE

(a) ERMLAIERBEBELEE - LA HE
A E

b) EREEETHKUFEAXNEEHELE
=

(c) TFIEAXHEFHEETEE

(d FHERELEEANBRESGKERNS

(e) EABAENKIM BB MEMEIRTKHA
RWEARLEERBLEE - &

() AIERAEREEEETVEENATRX




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

2.7.1 Research and development (continued|

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over a period of five
years.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet ready
for use are not subject to amortisation and are at least
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivable and available-forsale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determine the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.1 Classification (continued)
(a)  Financial assets at fair valve though profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

(b)  loans and receivables

Lloans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are seftled or expected to be
setfled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other
receivables’, 'pledged bank deposits’, ‘shortterm bank
deposits’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance

sheet (Note 2.11 and Note 2.12).

[c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Availablefor-sale financial assefs are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment mature or management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been fransferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Availablefor-sale financial assets
and financial assets through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective inferest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other gains — net”, in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monefary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as ‘gains and losses from investment
securities’. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income when the Group's right to receive
payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is @
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or realise
the asset and seftle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.9.4 Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.4 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

[a)  Assets carried at amortised cost [continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a
loan or held-fo-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in o subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assefs is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related fo an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

2.9.4 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(b)  Assets classified as available for sale (continued)
For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

2.9.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value on the date the derivative contracts are entered
info and are subsequently re- measured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being

hedged.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had not designated
any derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in
fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are being included in the consolidated income
statement as “other gains — net”.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks and other shortterm highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or share options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
It not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
fransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.15 Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as fransaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer seftlement of the
liability for af least 12 months affer the end of the reporting
period.

2.16 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly aftributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their infended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their infended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except fo the extent that it relates to
items recognised in the comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company's
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is seftled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b)  Deferred income tax [continued)

(i) Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

[c]  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assefs against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
infention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)
2.18 Employee benefits

2.18.1 Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of the leave.

2.182 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

2183 Share-based compensation

(a)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (share options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the share options is recognised as an expense. The tofal
amount fo be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted:

J including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period|;

and

J including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)
2183 Share-based compensation (continued)
(a)  Equity-seitled share-based payment transactions
[continued)
Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In
addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date. At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises ifs estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based on
the non- marketing performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment fo equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).

(b)  Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of share options over ifs equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

2184 Pension obligations
Group companies operate various defined contribution
plans. The plans are generally funded through payments to
trustee-administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

2.184 Pension obligations (continued)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions info a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid confributions
are recognised as an asset fo the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in seftlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an oufflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(c)]  Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B R

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
[continued)
2.21 Operating leases

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases [nef of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
as appropriate.

2.23 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given
to banks on behalf of subsidiaries to support banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee
was given. The fair value of a financial guarantee at
the time of signature is zero because all guarantees
are agreed on arm’s length terms, and the value of the
premium agreed corresponds fo the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premium is
recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Company's liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the initial amount, less amortisation of fees
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18, and the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the guarantee.
These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management's judgment. The fee income
earned, if any, is recognised on a straightline basis over
the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the consolidated
income statement within other operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries are provided for with no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the investment in the
financial statements of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, trade and other receivables
and derivative financial instruments. The Group's financial
liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies, amount due to a
director and derivative financial instruments.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposure, The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a)  Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that liquid
funds are placed with financial institutions registered with
sound credit standing in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Sales of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit history. The Group performs credit evaluations on its
customers.

Trade receivables are due within three months from the
date of billing. For certain customers with good credit
history, an extended period up to 180 days is allowed. As
at 31 December 2017, 66% of the total trade receivables
were due within three months (2016: 62%).

As at 31 December 2017, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 26% of the trade receivable
carrying amount (2016: 33%). The Group considers the
largest customers are financially healthy with no significant
credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the
carrying amounts of trade receivables in the balance
sheet. Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in Note 20.

(b)  Lliquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
fo ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

3. Financial risk management (continued) 3. B¥ERKRESE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMBERREEE)
(b)  Lliguidity risk (continued) b) REBELER(E)

The following tables detail the remaining contractual  THREHH TAREERAATREE B AS LKA
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's and  BRIEE&FE(BFHRBAENF LK (B FEF=)
the Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on  #E AMBITFEHENF EMZ)H SR B ERM
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest REBRAATAEEENZINEERBAEN
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,  Fga & 4B ERIER o

based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required

fo pay.

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on WMREEHHEEHE —HRERLEE KX M T
demand clause which gives the lender the unconditional & AR A EMEREEREERBE - %k
right to call the loan at any time, the amounts repayable (NHIERERERIZESER - UERATUER
are classified in the earliest time bracket in which the & S RrE/EL%ED -

lender could demand repayment.

Total More than More than
contractuol 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Repayable Within less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years J years
EHE
RERH
BeRE 5% ZER
BEE &g EERAR — R BREME BFREE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group rEE N SO ARETR ARHT R ARBT T ARETR AR#T T
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tF
T-A=1-H
Borrowings BE 1,214,299 1,271,699 297,121 500,256 127 881 346,441
Trade payables and bills payables BRI REMNERE 190,256 190,256 11,279 178,977 - -
Accruals and other payables i BRRAEN 26,210 26,210 - 26,210 - -
Amounts due fo relofed companies  FEfTEIES R 687 687 687 - - -
Derivafives setfled on net basis FRERITEERIA
- Inferest rate swaps ~f=g#H (39) (39) - (3.9) - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.  Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Lliguidity risk (continued)

B Ot BRI

3. MBEREE(E)

3.1 MEBEEER(E)
(b) REBELEER (&)

Total More than More than
confraciual 1 year but 2 years but
Camying  undiscounted Repayable Within less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years
2AAm
AHRD
Reng —FE 2 0
i | BFEBNE —F PRME AREF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group 158 ARBTTL ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
At 31 December 2016 R-B-XE
+ZA=+-A
Borrowings (-1 1,211,708 1,243,263 204,507 813,463 225,293 =
Trade payables and bills payables EREHRENER 182,231 182,231 7,330 174,901 - -
Accruals and ofher payables TEstE R RE MR 23,905 23,905 = 23,905 = =
Amounts due fo related companies FENER 2R 8,587 8,587 8,587 - - -
Derivatives seffled on gross basis BEREITAERIA
Forward foreign exchange conracts — EHGNEAH)
= inflow -RERA (57,904) (57,904] = (57,904) = =
- outflow ~R&ii 62,463 62,463 - 62,463 - -
Derivatives seffled on net basis FEREITEERIA
- Forward foreign exchange confracts  ZHSNEAK) [608) (608 - [608) - -

[c)  Cash flow and fair value interestrate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in inferest rates is mainly
affributable to its bank borrowings. Bank borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the Group's bank
borrowings are disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group analyses its interest
rate exposure on a dynamic basis and to hedge its
variable rate by fixed rate instruments, when necessary.
Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration
refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative
financing and hedging.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

[c) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
(continued)

During 2016 and 2017, the Group's borrowings at

variable rates were denominated in United States dollars

("USD"), RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD").

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 50 basis
points as at 31 December 2017 in bank borrowing
interest rates for bank loans with all other variables held
constant would decrease/increase the profit after taxation
by approximately RMB5,563,000 (2016: 50 basis
points; RMB5,550,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure fo inferest rate risk for non derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date.

(d]  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most
of the tfransactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange
rate risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group's assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose to
material foreign exchange risk, other than certain trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings
and derivative financial instruments denominated in USD
and HKD, details of which have been disclosed in Note
20, Note 23, Note 28 and Note 19, respectively. The
Group's assets and liabilities are primarily denominated
in RMB. Other than approximately 15% (2016: 18%) of
the sales are denominated in USD and certain expenses
in HKD, the Group mainly generates RMB from sales in
Mainland China to meet its liabilities denominated in

RMB.

Further depreciation or appreciation of the USD and the
HKD against the RMB will affect the Group's financial

position and results of operations.

3. UBEREE(E)
MBEBEE(E)

(c)] BernBRAALEFEERE(E)
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TAMFRRERSO L -

(d]  SMEE

AEETX2ETBEAMEEER - XREBAHD
X BEENABHUATBEAREEE - ERK
BERSIEERBEENRENTEEBILIFZ

ERNINEER  INERRESEL

AEENEERBBEAREHEBREFHNIZERN
EIWEBEARIMERRR - BRETREER Rk
ERHELEE BEARTEERIAENUELR
BILETE(FE 2 B KEE20 ~ MiEE23 - MIEE28
EHFEIORE)NN  REENEERBBEEIEIN
ARBEGHE - BRAISB(ZZ—RF : 18%)HIHE
AETFHERRETETRAZIN  AEEEPE

MEETERDARE  UENRARBIHED
afE -

XERBTLHARBHE— ] Tﬁiﬂﬁiﬁéé
R B A BB S A R AR

EcoGreen Infernational Group Limited 18R EE B R A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

3.  Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

([d)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

If the RMB had strengthened /weakened against the USD
and the HKD by 100 basis points as at the respective
balance sheet dates, profit after taxation would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB5,304,000
(2016: RMB7,431,000) and increase/decrease by
approximately RMB2,074,000 (2016: RMB22,000),
respectively, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gain/loss on translation of USD and HKD denominated
bank borrowings, trade receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

(e]  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because certain investments held by the Group are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets. As the
amount of such financial assets is not material to the
Group, the exposure to price risk is considered to be
insignificant.

The Group purchases turpentine as one of its major raw
materials for its manufacturing process, and is exposed to
fluctuation in its market price. The Group does not use any
derivative instruments to manage its economic exposure fo
the change in price of raw materials.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order fo provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by fotal capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet, plus net debt.

During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2016, was to maintain the debt equity
rafio fo be in a net cash position. The net cash amounts at

31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

3. MEBEBREE(E)

32 EBExEREE(E)

HEERNEMAR &K AEENAAGLRER
HER o W RZREBFERABRERTEH -
B FERRERE(BRAHEERBRMIIME
HEFAHER)RERENIREFEY - REX
[ (A HEERBRAI)IMERFE -

AREEBE-_ZT—+tFHNRBE_ZT—RFLHERL4E
g %?ﬁﬁﬂ—r%15tt7”ﬁ—irﬁ/¥ﬁﬁ7k$

E_E—RER_ZE—+F+_A=+—8 -
WezeBuUT :

2017 2016
—EB—tF TE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23)
Less: Total borrowings (Note 28) o

RBehReEEY(HE23)
BEE(HE28)

1,888,712 1,563,170
(1,214,299) (1,211,708)

Net cash FIRe

674,413 351,462

The increase in the net cash position during 2017 resulted
primarily from the increase in net cash generated from
operating activities.

TEEFEFREKFENTIBZARKEEEHM
BIREIFRAIEN
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3.  Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

J level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. The Group
does not have this type of financial instruments.

J level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices). As at
31 December 2017, the Group recognised
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts
with fair value of RMB nil as liabilities (2016:
RMB5,533,000), RMB39,000 as assets (2016
RMB1,582,000).

J level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs). As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had available-for-sale financial assets
of RMB200,000 (2016: RMB200,000) that are

within this category.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as litlle as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If one or
more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

J The fair value of interest rate swaps was calculated
as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves.

J The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contfracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

J Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities
The Group does not have any financial assets and
liabilities that are subject to offsetfting, enforceable master
nefting arrangements and similar agreements for the year.

4. Critical accounting estimates and

judgments
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

3. MBEREE(E)
3.3 AnfEM(E)
FUMEES BT AR SEHERT O

e FMREBNARBEREBEAIBRKZ XM
R REAARBESRENAEAE -

e EHINEASRMAABEMNBEERER
BHNEHERETE  MASEEREE
HE -

o HMEM - fIFERSREDN - BIA
ETHEARERTIANAAEBE-
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (continued)

(a) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response fo changes in market conditions. Management
reassesses these estimates at each balance sheet date.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, a provision
for impairment of inventories of RMB1,781,000 (2016:
a reversal of RMB168,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement within cost of goods sold.

(b)  Estimated impairment of intangible assets and

trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of intangible
assets and trade receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of intangible assefs and trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to intangible assets
and frade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
recoverable. The identification of impairment requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of intangible assets and trade
receivables and provision for impairment in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

(c) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (continued)

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. Significant judgment is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anficipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income
tax assefs and income tax expense in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of cerfain subsidiaries is subject
to management’s estimates that the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries.

(e) Research and development costs

Critical judgment by the Group’s management is applied
when deciding whether the recognition requirements for
development costs have been met. This is necessary as
the economic success of any product development is
uncertain and may be subject to future technical problems
at the time of recognition. Judgments are based on the
best information available at each balance sheef date. In
addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new products is continuously monitored by
the Group's management.
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5. Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the
Group's internal reports in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the internal reports provided
for review by the Executive Directors.

The Executive Directors consider the performance of the
Group from a product perspective. The Executive Directors
assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of adjusted EBITDA. This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure
from the operating segments such as legal expenses and
net exchange gains/losses. The measure also excludes
the effects of share of profit of an associate, share-based
payments and gains/losses on financial instruments.
Interest income and expenditure are not allocated to
segments, as this type of activity is driven by the central
treasury function, which manages the cash position of the

Group.

The segment information for the year ended 31 December
2017 is presented below:

B Ot BRI

5. 2HESR

BEREERARERAER/AITES - ITESE
BAKERPREAFERBENDEER - B
BEARERBUZ2ATESTNIREETLED

#B e

HITEFREMAEEREEREE - HITEER
BIEHRME  HE FENBRENCARR
M J(TEBITDA ) 8 — I EHE M1 A& & 5 BB R
B WAFEEETBREEDMIFLCE LR

MR E - FIINARE R MOFE X BB WS - %8

FAERBII T EERGEEH LN - UBRDRER
WX NMEmT Ak BROZE - FBKA
MXHAEBSEEDE  AASMELESHEHEA
AEEAKERS MR T RGBSR

BE-_F+tE+-A=+-BLEEZHBE
H25mT

Scent Specialties
and Taste Naturals  and Others  Unallocated Total
BHLER
FERWKE RAEY REA KAE k]
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%BTR AR%Tr ARBTR ARETxR
Revenue WA 938,293 436,056 197,033 - 1,571,382
Adjusted EBITDA KRFAEEBITDA 195,108 63,323 40,888 - 299,319
Depreciation e - - - (44,684) (44,684)
Amortisation b2 - - - (12,799) (12,799)
Net losses on financial SRMIAEBETE
instruments - - - (129) (129)
Share options granted fo BTESME THOERE
directors and employees - - - (142) (142)
Net finance income B PR - - - 5,682 5,682
Others Hith - - - (4,906) (4,906)
Share of profit of an associate  FEfhEE& U 25 - - - 307 307
Taxation TiE - - - (58,881) (58,881)
Profit for the year FEEFE 195,108 63,323 40,888 (115,552) 183,767
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5. Segment information (continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

5 2HMERE)
BE_T-AEt-A=t—BLFEZHBE

2016 is presented below: RBE2BMT :
Scent Specialties
and Taste Naturals  and Others  Unallocated Total
KRt 2m
BB RKE RARED K EHAM KAEE k]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT
Revenue WA 1,024,907 352,575 255,297 - 1,632,779
Adjusted EBITDA R FAEEBITDA 241,740 54,664 60,600 - 357,004
Depreciation e - - - 42,701) (42,701)
Amortisation 3 - - - (8,679) (8,679)
Net losses on financial SRITABETE
instruments - - - (5,151) (5,151)
Share options granted to RTESME IR ERE
directors and employees - - - (3,435) (3,435)
Gain on disposal of HE— R 2 I
an associate - - - 5,228 5,228
Net finance expenses WEERFE = = = (81,128) (81,128)
Others Hith = = - (1,015) (1,015
Share of losses of associates eGR4 1B - - - (386) (386)
Taxation i1 - - - (74,229) (74,229)
Profit for the year EEFE 241,740 54,664 60,600  (211,49¢) 145,508
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5.  Segment information (continued)

In presenting information of geographical segments,
segment revenue from external customers by continent is
based on the destination of the customer. The Group's
available-for-sale financial assets and deferred tax assets
are not considered to be segment non-current assets for
reporting. The Group's derivative financial instruments are
not considered to be segment total assets for reporting.
Other total assets are allocated based on where the assets
are located. The Group's deferred income tax, borrowings
and derivative financial instruments are not considered to
be segment liabilities for reporting as they are managed
by the Group's central treasury.

B Ot BRI

5. 2HEHGE)

REFIHIE R - SNBEF 2 BB A T RER
FrEs - MNP B0 ETHE - AREMAIH
HESRMEETELHEREE KRS D AR
RBEE - "EBNTESRTANMERD B
BEMRE HMWEEREDNREEMEHLOR -
RREERETHAEN BRRITEER T AR
TRESHERE B THRRADIALE -

Asia
(excluding
Mainland Mainland North Others/
China Europe China) America  Unallocated Total
CED) |
(FRERt Htt,/
FEIR BOM BR4M) &M A BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETR AR%Tn ARETR AR%Tn AR¥Tr AR%Txn
2017 —E—+&
Revenue WA 1,330,532 51,330 90,550 85,042 13,928 1,571,382
Non-current assets EREEE 550,955 - 353 - 5,670 556,978
Total assets EERE 3,358,726 3,266 68,945 - 5709 3,436,646
Total liabilities BEEE 233,528 1,716 10,301 - 1,279,699 1,525,244
2016 —B-NE
Revenue WA 1,488,331 35,140 46,662 46,308 16,338 1,632,779
Non-current assets ERBEE 454,044 - 515 - 5,670 460,229
Total assefs BEHE 3,063,513 1,085 77,397 - 7,252 3,150,147
Total liabilities et 257,609 65 10,397 - 1,275,141 1,543,212

Capital expenditure comprises additions to land use rights
(Note 15), property, plant and equipment (Note 16) and
infangible assets (Note 17). No geographical analysis of
capital expenditure is presented as substantially all of the
Group's capital expenditure was incurred in respect of
assets located in Mainland China.

Revenues of RMB155,196,000 (2016:
RMB217,250,000) and RMB129,043,000 (2016:
RMB133,689,000), respectively, are derived from two
major customers. These revenues are mainly affributable to
the segments of Scent and Taste and Naturals.
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6.  Other gains — net 6. Hfitolhzm — R
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Derivative financial instruments (Note a): PTESBMTA(KEa) ¢
— Net realised losses —BEREERFE (4,119) (38,954)
— Net fair value gains — AR EkE 3,990 33,803
Net exchange (losses)/gains (Note 14) EEN (BB s (HiEE14) (353) 3,100
Gain on disposal of an associate & — R 2 e - 5,228
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEDE  BEREEZEE
equipment (Note b) (FfzEb) (25) -
Income on government grants BT R R 2 W e 543 630
Others Hih 222 552
258 4,359
Notes: B EE
(a) Net realised losses on foreign exchange contracts amounting  (a) ERRINEARZEZEEBEBEFEAARE
to RMB4,119,000 (2016: RMB38,954,000) and the net fair 4,119,000 (ZZF—"F : AR¥ 38,954,000
value gains on foreign exchange contracts and interest rate TT) c ERBERZIINESR EMEIEHERZ DA
swap confracts amounting to RMB3,950,000 (2016: net fair FEWKED B AAREK3050,000m (=& — 7~
value gains of RMB33,694,000) and RMB40,000 (2016: F:RARFEREAEARKS3,094,000T) RAR
RMB109,000) had been recognised, respectively, which #40,000L (= F—7RF : AR¥109,0007T)
amounts are included in the respective year end balances of B AMTIOMEAITES R T AMBFE D &4
derivative financial instruments as set out in Note 19. A o

(b) The Group replaced its obsolete office fumiture and equipment at (b) ASEBRAARERCZEM - HEHEBHBAR

a loss of RMB25,000 on disposals as the Group was not able to m25/0007_5 FREARAREREARKEESH
sell them at their carrying amounts. HE -
7. Net finance income/(expenses) 7. BRWE(EH)3HE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETTT

Interest expense: MEEMR :

- Bank borrowings —RITEE (65,701) (58,118

— Government loans —BUFER (24) (36)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) on BMEEBAFEN HE(BE)

financing activities ([Note 14) (BfsE14) 44,312 (50,053)
Finance expenses B8 (21,413) (108,207)
less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets & : & BREEERMLEE 1,000 1,000
Total finance expenses BB R _(20,413) (107,207)
Finance income B s e
.7 Interest income on shortterm bank deposits  —mMSfiERmMesE 26095 ... 26,079
Net finance income/(expenses) F B (BA) 5,682 (81,128
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8. Expenses by nature

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

8. BMEST X

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Amortisation of prepaid operating TEfT A8 & T E R E 8 (FEE15)
lease payments (Note 15) 953 457
Depreciation (Note 16) FrE(ME16) 44,684 42,701
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) BIVEESE(ME17) 11,846 8,222
Provision for/(reversal of] impairment of TFERERETR(B#)(HE22)
inventories (Note 22) 1,781 (168)
[Reversal of)/provision for impairment of JE U BR FORME B
trade receivables (Note 20) (=%, 5z (M3E20) (1,319) 1,865
Employee benefit expense (Note 9) EERAMAX (HES) 48,809 49,229
Share-based payment expenses (Note 9) AR A M ER S E A (K E9) 142 3,435
Cost of inventories (Note 22) TFERA(KIFE22) 1,098,287 1,087,501
Transportation cost B A 15,705 19,618
Operating lease payments LEMEMES 4,646 4,968
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 2,179 2,533
Utilities and electricity charges BAELE) ) oK E & A 30,637 36,685
Subcontracting expenses MIEA 19,181 21,144
Other PRC taxes H B 18 17,422 21,460
Consumables and supplies YDREH FE 2,973 2,955
Bank charges RITE A 3,301 2,254
Other expenses HipE A 33,754 31,028
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing costs  $HERA - & R HISHERA KL
and administrative expenses TEE R 1,334,981 1,335,887

Annual Report 2017 —ZT—+HFFH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

9. Employee benefit expense

9. EBERARAX

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Wages, salaries, other allowances and IE ¥s - HtwEAREDH=
benefits in kind 43,939 44117
Share options granted to directors and BRYTEERBITNERE
employees 142 3,435
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIS P AN — T BB LR &
(Note a (PffEEa) 4,870 5,112
48,951 52,664

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to a state-sponsored refirement plan
for its employees in Mainland China, which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group and its employees contribute
approximately 12% to 14% and 0% to 8%, respectively,
of the employees’ salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or postretirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
refirement plan is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by
an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its Hong Kong employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. Both the Group's and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$ 1,500 per
month.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group's
contributions to the aforementioned retirement
schemes was approximately RMB4,870,000 (2016:
RMB5,112,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Group
was not entitled to any forfeited contributions to reduce the
Group's future contributions.

(a) BAESHAE - EEEKTE
RETERMER  AEESETBERNBEER
BRBAZEBHUTERTEHR - XAEERE
BED IR T RFAEECREFHFSH12%E
14% K% 0% = 8% » BRIFEHFE KRN - AR
EHABAEERXNERERRRRENZE
T - BRRBAI 2 ENREFEAERN TRINEER
Z—YIRRERIEAE -

AEBEERHEESRELEABIEEAETE
ZEBHRFFTERBEATESAE([RESF
2 RigpiESTE AEEREFEREZR
FHRBRHIEAEZEIIMEE 2 RBRERASY
ERRAGEHK  MAKEREESAHRKER
71,500/ 7T °

RNEE  AEEE@LLARKESFTE 2 HREE
X ENREEAL870,000L(ZFE—RF : ARK
5,112,0007C) - R=_E—+F+=-_A=+—8 -
REEWES QUE KA BIERDEBEMR -
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9.  Employee benefit expense (continued)

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include three (2016: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
36. The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2016:
one) individuals during 2017 are as follows:

B Ot BRI

9. EEEAMZ(£)

(b) EBBSHA
AEBESTFMORMATBE=((ZT—A
F UL EE - 0P HH B IE ARG R B 536
RBE o —E—+EXHRESME(ZT—<F
—h) ALTHEBMOT -

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARKETT

Basic salaries, other allowances and EAHS « HtE R EMA=
benefits in kind 1,864 Q07
Retirement benefit — defined contribution plans RAKIEMN — E 2B RET 2 16 15
Share-based payments BARS 5 15 B Rty < < - 217
1,880 1,139

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HEHFME NIHESBERN:

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
Emolument band B &6 [
HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 B 000,001 L&
B ,500,0007T 2 ]

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
no emoluments were paid to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or as
compensation for loss of office.
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10. Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

10. MIBAF
UWTAR-_ZE—+tE+-_A=+t—HEXEWEL

December 2017: AR E
Proportion of
Proportion of  Proportion of  ordinary shares
ordinary shares ordinary shares held by
Place of incorporation Particular of issved ~~ direcly held by heldby ~ non<controlling  Principal activiies and
Name and kind of legal entity share capitel parent (5 the Group (%) inferests (%) place of operation
ERRIBHR HEAREREE  mAREEAN  mFBREER
£ HEELEE BRARARE HEBRLA SERLA FANBERLA TEERREENE
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited Britsh Virgin Islands US§95,000 100% 100% -~ Invesiment holding, in Hong Kong
ZBRAES 95,000%7 RESK B
Doingcom Intemational Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 = 100% - Troding of fine chemicals, in Hong
PEERARLA 5 7A120,000,0007 Kong
EERMEm BB
Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Lid.  Mainland China RMB190,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine
Efns EERAT (Note b) R%190,000,0007 chemicals in Mainland China
GG ED) EERBERAEn
hERD
Xiamen Doingcom Biofechnology Mainlond China RMB50,000,000 = 100% - Monufaciuring of fine chemicals
Co., lid. (Note ¢) AR%50,000,0007C in Mainland China
BN RERAA i (Bifztc) EERA SR PERL
B HE5ERAR (M) Meinland China RMB20,000,000 = 100% - Sdle of fine chemiccls in
Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited [Note d| ARE20,000,0007 Mainland China
Note qf Bl (Bstd) HERA 2R PEAL
B SR RARAR (M) Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% - Manvfacturing and sale of food
Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Lid. [Note ¢) AE10,000,0007 additives and seasoning
(Note eI (Hste) EERBERDAMAR
R RER
Xiomen Sinotek Enterprise Mainland Ching RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine
Development Co., Lid. (Note f| AE%20,000,0007c chemicals in Mainland China
EfRERERARAA s (i) EERBERBEn
hERD
ENEREZIARAR (Hio) Mainlond China US$10,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine
Zhangzhou Hulyou Enterprise (Note g) 10,000,000%7 chemicals in Mainland Ching
Co., ltd. [Note o) I () EEREERALER
hEm
RifiaEEZERAA (Wita)  Mainland Ching RMB10,000,000 = 100% - Sale of foresfry products in Mainland
Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading (Note f AR%10,000,0007T Ching
Co., lid. [Note o B A (i 3Eh) HEMZER  REN
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B Ot BRI

10. Subsidiaries (continued) 10. MBATR(4E)

Notes: Bzt :

(a) The English names are for identfification purpose only. (a) HEREEHBR -

(b) Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., ltd. is sinoforeign owned (b} EffH{LEFR AR AEFBEANMEEEEMT
enterprise established in Xinmen, Fujian Province, Mainland K zHINGELE  KEHAEN+F  EE-FT
China for a term of 40 years up to October 2037. =t&FE+ AL

c] Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., lid. is sinoforeign owned  (c| EFF s EYRIBBR AR RETEAMEREE
enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland PFATRAR 2 PN B E REH AT &=
China for a term of 20 years up fo July 2024. TZMELALE -

(d) Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited is a limited liability — (d) EFRHEZER AT AN EANMEESEMT
enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland RZZ2BRAR  KEHRAE-_+F E-T_F
China for a term of 20 years up fo June 2024. NALE e

(e) Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., lid. is a limited liability enterprise (e EfRHmERERAR AR AMEEEEMT
established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a NI ZBRAF  KEMRE-_+F 2T =—%F
term of 20 years up to October 2031. + ALk

f) Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Lltd. are wholly  {f| B HEEERAERAFR/IIEGEELRSE - £F
foreign owned enterprises established in Xiamen, Fujian BAMBEREEEMATRY KEHE=1TF ==
Province, Mainland China for a term of 30 years up to July ToRFEAL-

2026.

(g) Zhangzhou Huiyou Enterprise Co., ltd. is wholly foreign owned  (g] BEMNERBEXBRABA—HEINELE  EFEH
enterprise established in Changtai, Zhangzhou, Fujian Province, MiEEE BN REFHKL - KEHM/A T4
Mainland China for a term of 50 years up to April 2057. E_ZERLFMALL-

(h) Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. is a limited  (h) RIERIEMEEZ AR DN A E S E
liability enterprise established in Chuxiong, Yunnan Province, MY ZBRAR @ EEPAE=TF =2_FT=+
Mainland China for a term of 30 years up to March 2037. F=R1E-

11. Investment in an associate 1. BERE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFT

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 7,423 8,581

Share of profit/(losses) of associates JE(RER LR, (BE)HE 307 (386)

Disposal of an associate HH B — R Bt o - (772

At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 7,730 7,423
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11. Investment in an associate (continued) 11. BERE(E)

The associate as listed below has share capital consisting LA FF|& B4R AS AL BRI AEER
solely of ordinary shares, which is held directly by the ##%E : SMERTREEZERNAE T ELEH
Group; the country of incorporation or registration is also 24 o

its principal place of business.

Nature of investment in an associate as at 31 December #HE-_ZTE—+ER -—T— R EFE+_-_A=+—HFHKL

2017 and 2016 are as follows: WEHMEENT
Place of business/
country of Percentage of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation ownership inferest Method Principal activities
TMALER
& SR Fre Rk ik TEEH
2017 2016

—T—t& ZTRF

RERRBAC TAR AR Mainland China 25% 25% Equity Manufacturing of fine chemicals
(Pt iEa)
Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals & B A RS HERMLER

Co., ltd. (Note a)

Notes: 5T

(a) Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., ltd. is a private company  (al RERREBMACIARARAART » ERHR
and there is no quoted market price available for its shares. BHISHE -
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11. Investment in an associate (continued)

Set out above is the associate of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and 2017 which, in the opinion of
the directors, is immaterial to the Group, no summarised
financial information of the associate has been disclosed.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to Group's
interest in the associate and there are no contfingent
liabilities of the ventures itself.

Details of loan to an associate and amount due to an
associate are disclosed in Note 35(b) and Note 35(c),
respectively.

B Ot BRI

11. BERE(E
UNEAKEBEE-_Z—R"F+_A=+—8BKk=_Z
—+F+-_A=+—HWHKE  BEERAEEEYH
BENRELTTEKN  REHEBERRMNTEEE
BERHERIFE -

AN ERE  AEEMEERRARENREE
AEbBEEMIABE -

B 2B B R BB L A EEIE D BIR M sE35(b) K Ft
FF35(c)HEE -

12. Taxation 12. ®E
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Current tax REHIA
— Mainland China corporate income tax for ~ —ANFEEHBE RS ZFREH
the year 49,840 66,462
— Under/(over) provision in previous year —LARIFEE D5 (Z1R) 2 s Rt 1,541 (1,076)
Total current tax RAMIABEE 51,381 65,386
Deferred income tax (Note 29) FEIEFTISRIIAE (KI5E29) 7,500 8,843
58,881 74,229
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12. Taxation (continued)
Notes:

(a) Hong Kong profits tax
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had no
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong.

(b) Mainland China corporate income tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2016: 25%). Xiamen
Doingcom Chemicals Co. ltd. was granted the High and New
Technology Enterprise ("HNTE") stafus in October 2015 being valid
for 3 years and Xiamen Doingcom Chemicals Co. Lid. is entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15%.

(c) Overseas income taxes

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income fax.
The Company's subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies Acts of the
British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income tax.

(d) Mainland China value-added tax

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject to Mainland
China value-added tax (“VAT") at 17% (2016: 17%) of revenue from sale
of goods in Mainland China and entitled to a VAT export refund at 9%
to 13% (2016: 9% to 13%) from sale of goods outside Mainland China.
Input VAT paid on purchases can be used to offset output VAT levied on
sales to determine the net VAT recoverable/payable.

(e) Withholding tax

Pursuant to the New Tax law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings affer 31 December 2007
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Withholding
taxes are payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those
subsidiaries and an associate established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

12. BIE(E)

GEE

(a) EBREB
PP 7N £2 (8] 3F M AE B 1S ok RER B AR B AR - R bk 3P A
FRE B RIS B

(b) Bl A 3t b 3 T 45

R BAMKT 2 B RRAZ25%(ZF—RF : 25%)
ZHEGNTERMEERSH - R—T—AF+H E
PRI (E BB R AR ER TR M EENMA - RE=
F - MEPHRIEEER AR AREBH R SLE -

(c) IS
ARBRERAEFRERREERSHBEEMKR L SER R
BRAR  AtERCHNRSHSHMEN - AQRER
BRLZEESRIZHBARDRIERERE LS ERRE
REPEEMAKY - EER L BARBREZESAEN

(d) FH Bl P 3t 12 fE B

PR B A ST 2 P B A RN AP B A3 S 3R A H
WABRDRIZI7%(ZF—RF : 17%) - B#AhER#bE
ER(EER])  BEEHAHERZZEER L ORRD
FRMERORE13%( =T —RF 1 9%%E13%) st H A
B,/ EAIEETFER - RER N 2 E IR ER A A
HIHH & BBz SHIREER -

(e) RANFRFEHR

RBHHE  BE-TZTNF—A— B BFEDEHRI
EIREENREEIRIOBHHERNMER - BESK
ZENF-A-HRER YERAR-_TELF+ A=
T RAZEMEEN BN - R B EINFREE T
iR B ERR UG E - B RAE R KMAAEHN
Ko AEEEANORERIO% - At - B=FZNF—A
— B - AEBEIRRR T ET B MHE Q5 R kAR
EENBRRETHESRHEE -
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12. Taxation (continued)
The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

B Ot BRI

12,85 (748)
DAZ S 8 8 B B A1 RSB 5B 2 BEOR - BRI A Bt
TRABERNMETORES EMELNER

average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated M BEFEZR - HWEEMT :
entities and the reconciliation is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETIT
Profit before taxation B A5 71 1) 5 242,648 219,737
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable % AERIE R F5E @ A 2 & # i Rt &
to profits in the respective countries ZRIB 46,767 63,183
Income not subject to tax EARB A (1,615) (1,307)
Expense not deductible for tax purposes NE N & A 1,903 993
Under/(over) provision in previous year AR E D5t (Z1R) Z FrisHi 1,541 (1,076)
Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC PEE AR REATMZ
subsidiaries RINFTISHL 7,500 12,000
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset BRBRRELERIEEENTE
was recognised 3,324 1,230
Utilisation of previously unrecognised AR A ARERNTIE
tax losses (539) (794)
Tax charge FHmEy 58,881 74,229

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.3%

(2016: 28.8%).

Included in the tax losses as at 31 December 2017 was a
loss of RMB19,136,000 (2016: RMB17,276,000) that
will expire during the period from 2018 to 2022 (2016
2017 to 2021), while other losses of RMB19,236,000
(2016: RMB10,850,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses
has not been recognised as it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the unutilised tax losses can be utilised, or the amounts
attributable to specific subsidiaries are insignificant.
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%ﬁAEM]Q,]?X),OOOﬁ(:;_/\E AR #&
17,276,0007T) - ZiLHﬂH—rﬁAiv —N\FE2_F
—F(ZE—RF —tFE_FT——F)

R Eﬂﬂﬂéﬁa/\iﬁé}l@ 236,000 (ZZF—X
F: AR%10,850,000) B AT R HIAEEE - AR
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13. Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

13. Bk

A
SREAREDREBBRARAESE ZH
B BRUFRE BT ERBOMNETHRH -

2017 2016
—E —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Profit aftributable to owners of the Company  _ MBSBRART®AE 183,767 [ 143,383
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B #717% @M aINEFHE (T4
in issue (thousands) 685,368 650,392

Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)

BIREARR S (BRARE)

26.81 Cents®  22.35 Centsm

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The dilutive potential ordinary shares of the
Company mainly comprise the share options. The number
of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options less the number of shares
that could have been issued at fair value (determined as
the average market price per share for the year) for the
same fotal proceeds is the number of shares issued for no
consideration. The resulting number of shares issued for no
consideration is included in the weighted average number
of ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.

3]

BEER N BRRMEEENEE L BRI
B REBEEZRTEBRRNINEFOREGTHE -
ARBAIHENECLEBREIZCEBERE T
REBTHRMDHE BERBERITE T BRER
FEZ BT M BB RERRIZR AR EBGRR
2EFOMHERMNE) BTLESHRREHT
WARIBERT @ AIRERERHTHRN BB KT
B o E—TREHTHRMNBE HEKINEFS
LERBEN 8D SERAFEHESRKE
REFTRE D& o
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SOt SRR M
13. Earnings per share (continued) 13. BRWz=(E)
Diluted (continued) ®wE(E)
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBFR ARBT T

Profit aftributable to owners of the Company  FEREBRAARTHEEE 183,767 145,383

Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 377 % @R I FHE(T5H)

in issue (thousands) 685,368 650,392
Adjustments assuming the exercise of B BIRE WA TER AR (TFE)
share opfions (thousands) 951 2,866

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 52 45 i 58 2 | 69 3 358 A% &Y

_for dilvted eamings per share fthousands)  _ SETa®(TED) 686319 .. 633,258
Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share) FREFWS(BRARE) 26.78 Centsm  22.26 Cents?
14. Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 14. ERWE(BX)FHE
The exchange differences credited/(charged) in the EAHFMBRFRER (EBR)NELEZERER
consolidated income statement are included as follows: THEER :
2017 2016
—g—tF  —F- A%
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARBT T

Other gains — net (Note 6) Hfblas — F 8 (MIEE6) (353) 3,100
Net finance income/(expenses) — (Note 7) FEB W (BR) (MsE7) 44,312 (50,053)
43,959 (46,953)
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15. Land use rights 15. tibfERA#E

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid  ZAEBER T FERE Y HAEENECEHER
operating lease payments and their net book values are 18 - IREBREFESFTNT -

analysed as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF  ZFAE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETT

At 1 January —H—H 41,276 41,716
Additions = - 17
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease TER R L ERIE R 8 (FHRE8)

payments (Note 8) (953) (457)
At 31 December +=B=+—H 40,323 41,276
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BRI
16. Property, plant and equipment 16.91% - BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
Plant and ~ office furniture Motor Construction-in-

Buildings ~ machinery and equipment vehicles progress Total
HENE
%6 M

BT  EERMS e RE ERIE ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT  ARETR ARBTT ARETT  AR%TRT

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=E—x%&

TZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 114,369 158,160 10,312 118 42425 325,384
Additions AE = 1,101 784 670 38,002 40,557
Transfers R - 21,848 1,627 - (23,4795) -
Depreciation (Nofe 8] HE (F38) (5,275) (34,402 (2,858) [166) - 142,701)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 109,094 146,707 9,865 622 56,952 323,240
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE

+=ZA=+-H
Cost A 155,927 4729073 24,074 4,970 56,952 670,996
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (46,833) (282,3606) (14,209 (4,348) - (347,756)
Net book amount REFE(E 109,094 146,707 9,865 622 56,952 323,240
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=8—+%

TZAZ+-BLEFE
Opening net book amount FVREFE 109,094 146,707 9,865 622 56,952 323,240
Additions NE - 4,249 599 - 9724 14,572
Transfers B - 2,904 116 - (3,020) -
Disposals HeE - - (25) - - (25)
Depreciation (Nofe 8) & (Mfi:E8) (5,275) (35,882) (3,380) (147) - (44,684)
Closing net book amount EREETAE 103,819 117,978 7,175 475 63,656 293,103
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+%

+=ZA=+-H
Cost AR 155,927 436,226 24,275 4,970 63,656 685,054
Accumulated depreciation SHITE (52,108) (318,248) (17,100) (4,495) - (391,951)
Net book amount REFE 103,819 117,978 7,175 475 63,656 293,103
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B Ot BRI

16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The Group's buildings and buildings under construction,
totalling RMB119,863,000 (2016: RMB124,392,000)
are situated in Mainland China with lease terms of 50
years up to December 2047, December 2048, May
2053, April 2054 and December 2064, respectively.

Depreciation expense of RMB39,027,000 (2016:
RMB37,014,000) has been charged in ‘cost of sales’
and RMBS5,643,000 (2016: RMB5,670,000) in

administrative expenses’.

16. 9% - BMERRE(E)

AEB EFREEEFAHEARK
119,863,000t ( —Z & — XN F : AR ¥
124,392,000) - B E A ZE T £ - 1
ERHS0F PRIRZENLEF+=H  =ZFTWXM
NF+—F —FTR=FHA —FTHIEFWNA
RZFANFE+ZAER °

HEBRAEFT ARYK39,027,000L(ZF—X
F:AR®37,014,0007T)E MHEKAR R X
85 - M ARKES, 643,000 (ZF—RF : ARK
5,670,00070) AIEF A TTTERE M |9 -

An analysis of construction-in-progress is as follows: EEIREANMT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Construction costs of buildings R A 16,044 15,298

Cost of leasehold improvements and HEMEERE - BE RERKAR

plant and machinery 47,612 41,654
63,656 56,952
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R LR
17. Intangible assets 17. BREEE
Product
development
cost
EmREAREA
RMB'000
ARET T
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—XR"E+-A=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYREFE 75,128
Additions NE 15,714
Amortisation (Note 8] B (MIaE8) (8,222)
Closing net book amount HEREFE 82,620
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-—XF+=-A=+-—8
Cost D% 185,454
Accumulated amortisation EEHHEE Y (78,312)
Accumulated impairment RERIE (24,522)
Net book amount BREHE 82,620
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—+tH5+=-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 82,620
Additions RE 51,725
Amortisation (Note 8) Bes (MIFE8) (11,846)
Closing net book amount AR AR BRTE SHE 122,499
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 237,179
Accumulated amortisation B (90,158)
Accumulated impairment RETEE (24,522)
Net book amount BRHESHE 122,499

Notes:

FHEE -

[a) Amortisation of RMB11,846,000 (2016: RMB8,222,000) is  (a) ARE11,846,000t 2 #H(ZZ—RF : AR

included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income statement.
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BT B RMEE

18. Available-for-sale financial assets 18. AIftHESLHEE
2017 2016
—2—+tF A
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR ARBFT
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Bk+=A=+—H 200 200
Less: non-current portion o FERENED D (200) (200)
Current portion mEEB - -

Available-for-sale financial assets are unlisted equity AtHELREEBIEEHRAES o

securities.
19. Derivative financial instruments 19. fT4¢mIT A
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—REF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a8E BE af&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'0O00 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T ARBETIT ARET T
Current portion: mEERD
Interest rafe swaps MEE#H 39 - - -
Forward foreign exchange — =HIHNEA R
contracts
- held-for-trading —ABXSENFRES - - 1,582 5,533
Total st 39 - 1,582 5,533
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19. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group entered into foreign exchange contracts to
buy RMB/USD during the year ended 31 December
2014. These contracts were intended to minimise the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2017, the remaining outstanding contracts
have a maximum notional amount of RMB nil (2016:

RMB41,622,000).

In the second half of 2014 and during the year ended
31 December 2015, foreign exchange contracts to buy
USD/RMB were entered into to minimise the currency
exposure of the Group suffered from the fluctuations in
RMB. All these contracts expired in the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Group entered into some simple forward contracts
on 8 January 2016 and 13 January 2016, intending
to stabilise the exposure of the outstanding RMB/USD
structured forward foreign exchange contracts. The fotal
notional amount of these simple contracts remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2017 is RMB nil (2016:
RMB41,622,000).

(b) Interest rate swap contracts

The Group entered info interest rate swap contracts to
mitigate the exposure to the interest rate risk associated
with the Group's borrowings.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding
interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2017 were

32,671,000 (2016: RMB nil).

At 31 December 2017, the fixed interest rate is 1.4% and
the main floating rate is LIBOR.
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19.0TEEMIA(E)

(a) EHMHNES
MAEBRBE_T-—NF+ _A=1THLFE
NFATZINEER - UBAARKE £ - 5]
HEARZBENRBEREARE AR ZINER,
e RZE—+F+A=+—8 AT ARTK
ERZESEBEERR/RARBEL(ZZE—RF :
AR¥41,622,0007T) °

R_E-—HFTHEFRBE_T-—RF+_A=
T—HIENFEAR  REBTIBAEXT AR
BZINERR  UBREREASBRARKERX
KBMARZ  EBER - ZLARELE_T—
RNETZA=+—"BZFEEREHHER -

AEEER-F—R"EF-ANBRZFT—RE—
AT=BFZZMhBEEMAR @ sFFEREER
EBEARY ETABUHERINESRZER
ZEBERRANR _FT—tF+-_A=+—H&HT
ATERZBEEHARARARETL(ZFT—N:
41,622,000)7T °

(b) RIREHELK
AR B AT S R 45 B S 49 LURUE AR 5= B 5 B A
EEMRER o

R-B—tE+-A=+—8  PREENFE
58 A ANRESEAARES2,671,0007E(=
T ANRMETD) -

RZE—tF+A=+T—H8  EEMNXA/1.4
B MEBNFENESMBEBITEARFR
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20. Trade receivables and bills receivable 20. EWERREEREE

2017 2016
—F—+tF kAL
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Trade receivables FELUR BE =R 529,893 698,493
Bills receivable R E g - 790
529,893 699,283
Less: Provision for impairment B RUE BAE (6,741) (8,060)
523,152 691,223

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and bills EWEZREKZEEREEEALERE -

receivable approximate their fair values.

The credit period granted by the Group fo its customers AEBGTFERF ZEEH—MOOEOOK  HR
is between 60 and 90 days. For cerfain customers with BRFEEELHRFS  £EBFEZI80HH
good credit history, an extended period up to 180 days is {EEH - UK REWEE ZREDTOT ¢
allowed. The aging analysis of trade receivables and bills

receivable is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —FENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETTT

0 to 30 days 0&30Kk 146,566 171,700
31 to 60 days 31 260K 114,940 147,668
61 to 90 days 61 &EQ0K 90,543 113,520
91 to 180 days Q1= 180K 175,090 262,829
181 to 365 days 181 E365K 1,277 2,481
Over 365 days 365KA E 1,477 1,085

529,893 699,283
Less: Provision for impairment S R E R (6,741) (8,060)

523,152 691,223
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20. Trade receivables and bills receivable

[continued)

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to the historical information about counter party default
rates. The existing counter parties do not have significant
default in the past. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to tfrade receivables, as the Group has a
large number of customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB384,133,000 (2016: RMB509,143,000) were not
yet past due.

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB139,019,000 (2016: RMB182,080,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no significant
financial difficulty and based on past experience, the
overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables is as follows:

B Ot BRI

20. BEWRRREWRE(E)

RBBHSRETR R 2 BKER -
BAENKRREHEREPNREEME - RE
MEFPTEEANIER BN AEEEFHE &
R BEBREERZEERRY EBOET -
AEEIWIR B FHE T EHa EER -

RZZE—+F+-A=+—0 RaHzEKE
HAREEH#£384,133,000(=ZF—XRF - A
E#¥509,143,0007T) °

R-_ZE—+F+_A=+—8  BRERA
R¥ 139019000 (ZFE—XRFE: AR
182,080,00070 ) & E @ BB W R (B ° Lt FERK
BESRZEAYEEAVERENB LIRS MR
BRELE  @ERE ] IR E o 1t EEUERK
BRI DITAAT -

2017 2016
—F—tFE  CBAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARMTR
91 1o 180 days 91Z 180X 139,019 182,080
139,019 182,080

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB6,741,000 (2016: RMB8,060,000) were impaired
which have been fully provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to a few independent
customers which are in unexpectedly difficult economic
situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

RZZB—tF+-A=1t—B EBREFAX
BEARKOG6741,000L(—F—XRF: ARK
8,060,0007T) K ERAE * WE = EELEME - @
RRE B FE R B 2R B D B I TR A SN B A
BRERHBLES o it ERUGRNIREMT

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—KRF

RMB’000 RMB'0O00

AR®T ARET T

91 to 180 days Q1ZE 180K 3,987 4,494
181 to 365 days 181 E365K 1,277 2,481
Over 365 days 365K E 1,477 1,085
6,741 8,060
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B Ot BRI

20. Trade receivables and bills receivable

[continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables
and bills receivable are denominated in the following
currencies:

20. BWERARREWRE(E)

AEE O EYERR M EEZENREENLTNIE
BREN

2017 2016
S P
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Renminbi AR 469,614 627,306
US dollar ET 53,538 63,917
523,152 691,223

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEMBRFURE B R Z BN T -

2017 2016
—F—tF  CF-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETT

At 1 January —HA—H 8,060 6,195
[Reversal of)/provision for impairment of FEM R FORE R (B~

trade receivables (Note 8) e (FI5E8) (1,319) 1,865
At 31 December +=-—HA=+—H 6,741 8,060

The provision for impaired receivables have been included
in ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off, when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

HERERKANBEDEREAHINBERTH
[TTRERIA - ERERPHMRNEE RS
FEFEHE RN D R SNR 2RSS o
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B O SRR MEE
21. Prepayments and other receivables 21. FEARKREAMERRK
2017 2016
—B-tF ZEARF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBT T

Prepayments for purchases of raw materials B RERFEM 193,629 218,620
Prepayments for construction-in-progress R TIRFERK 84,653 -
Input value-added tax recoverable A] U O] 2 TEAZ (B 4,571 4,887
Others Hith 9,774 10,092
292,627 233,599
Less: non-current portion B IERENED D
Prepayments TERTR (84,653) -
Prepayments and other receivables T 3R B Ho At fE U 3R
— current portion —REER D 207,974 233,599

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate HEMEKRAKEBMEEZEAABHREATIEAAR

their fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB. B o

22. Inventories 22. 78
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
ARBETRT AREFIT
Raw materials Bt 107,159 74,791
Work-in-progress R 889 867
Finished goods EK G 80,235 41,429
188,283 117,087
Less: Provision for impairment o ORERE (4,711) (2,930
183,572 114,157

The cost of inventories recognised as expense WRABAXINMFATHEXNRNIZTFEKREARA
and included in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to R#1,098,287,000 (=T —R"F : AR
RMB1,098,287,000 (2016: RMB1,087,501,000). 1,087,501,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a provision RZZE—+F+_A=+—HILEFER  AR%K
for impairment of inventories of RMB1,781,000 (2016: 1,781,000tz FEREREE (ZZT—XRF : AR
a reversal of provision for impairment of inventories of ¥ 168,0007T 2 77 & BB # 5 0 B ) 2 £ & OF 7
RMB168,000) has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the & [$HERKA A o

consolidated income statement.
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23. Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank 23. B#E#ZBRITER - EHRTHE

deposits, cash and cash equivalents M BEeRBESEEY
2017 2016
—2-tF  —EAF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBT T

Pledged bank deposits BEHEAZ RITER 57,254 60,498
Shortterm bank deposits HHARI T 16,550 22,650
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRLEEY

— cash at bank and on hand —RITREFRS 1,888,712 1,563,170

1,962,516 1,646,318

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, short-  REEB > BT  CSHERTED - B4 RIE
term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents are 4 =EYHERAELSESKHLENT

denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016
S =
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARETT

Renminbi AR 1,939,267 1,629,293
Hong Kong dollar T 5,226 3,845
US dollar =TT 17,634 13,017
Euro B 373 147
Others HAih 16 16

1,962,516 1,646,318

As at 31 December 2017, the effective interest rate on R-_ZT—+E+—A=+—8 ' GHETER >
short-term bank deposits was 2.1% (2016: 2.3%) per BEMRAEGE21%(ZF—RF : 2.3%) - K&
annum. The shortterm bank deposits of the Group have an Bl 2 B HiRITER 2 FHRIHE 278K (—F—
average maturity of 278 days (2016: 365 days). ANFECZAATAR)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged RZZ—+&F+-_A=+—H0 A£EEHLAFDK
bank deposits, shortterm bank deposits, cash and cash  #R17EH - BHRITER BERBELEEY
equivalents of approximately RMB1,939,267,000 #ARM1,939,267,000t(—F—RE : AR
(2016: RMB1,629,293,000) denominated in RMB. RMB  #1 629,293, 0007 ) ¥ A A REEET & o A R¥
is not a freely convertible currency in international markets  NEERBIEHH AR EHREE - HEXHFEA
and its exchange rate is determined by the People’'s Bank  RR1TEE o

of China.
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B Ot BRI

23. Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank 23.
deposits, cash and cash equivalents
[continued)

At 31 December 2017, bank balances of

RMB57,254,000 (2016: RMB60,498,000) have been

pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to

certain of the Group's subsidiaries.

CEAZRTER  BHRITE
R RERRSEEW(E)

RZE—ttF+ZA=+—H "  AR%
57254000 t ( ZFE — XN F : AR¥
60,498,0007T) Z RITFRE TNEIRIERAE
I%JL_WHJ% ARRITEISEERE 2 HM

The cash and cash equivalents are not exposed to material ~ RERBEFEBYALBEEXNFEERR °
credit risk.
24. Share capital, premium and share options  24. BZ& - mERBKRE

(a) Share capital — Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (a) BAR-SREECIBTZEER

each
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
shares shares
Authorised: EE BE R ZEREE
‘000 RMB'0O00
TF&t ARBET T
1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and R-—E—R"F—HF—H"
31 December 2017 —E—RE+-A=t+—HE
—E—+F+-_A=+—8H 2,000,000 200,000
Fully paid Value of
shares ordinary Share
SRRN shares premium Total
Authorised: ERE ROBE HEREE v &t
‘000 RMB'000 RMB'0O00 RMB'0O00
Fit AREFT AREBTFT AREBTT
1 January 2016 R-_ZE—RF—H—H 540,549 55,297 203,712 259,009
Issue of bonus shares (Note i) BEITAL R (B 5ED) 108,110 9,265 (9,265) -
Issue of shares (Note ii) EITRAR (M 3TN 7,810 675 8,027 8,702
At 31 December 2016 R-E—N
+=A= 656,469 65,237 202,474 267,711
1 January 2017 R-ZE—+tF—HF—H 656,469 65,237 202,474 267,711
Placing of new shares (Note iii) T2 & 3 I 10 (BT aTiin) 100,000 8,499 119,838 128,337
Issue of shares (Note iv) BITRRAD (P aEiv) 18,590 1,644 19,564 21,208
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZB—+F
+=—HA=+—8 775,059 75,380 341,876 417,256
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B Ot BRI

24. Share capital, premium and share options

[continued)
(a) Share capital - Ordinary shares of HK$0.1

each (continued)
Note:

(i) On 12 July 2016, the Company issued 2 bonus shares for every
10 shares held on 17 June 2016.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company issued
7,810,000 shares at a price of HK$1.29 each pursuant to the
exercise of 7,810,000 share options.

(iii) On 10 November 2017, the Company issued 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at oppro><|mofe|\/ RMB1.30
(equwonent of HK$1.53) per share by way of placing. After
deducting the related placing expense, the net proceeds of
approximately RMB 128,337,000 was to provide the Company
with the general working capital. The excess over the par value
of the shares was credited to the share premium accounts. The
shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all
respects.

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company issued
18,590,000 shares at a price of HK$ 1. 29 each pursuant fo the
exercise of 18,590,000 share options.

(b)  Share options

Share options are granted to directors and to selected
employees. The exercise price of the granted options is
equal to the market price of the shares on the date of
the grant or the average closing prices of the shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant, whichever is higher. The share options
would vest progressively from the grant date to the third
year after the grant (the vesting period) provided that the
relevant employee remained employed by the Group.
Share options are exercisable up to 10 years after the
grant date. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in
cash.

24. BA& - nERBREE)

(@) BA-—SKREECIETZEBER
(#)

G

o R

/N

ﬂ-f— EI%H]OHxHx{ ?E—%ﬁ BRATAR ©

2T —

810,000f

Ei]‘&] 29/§7E§§TT7 8 OOOOHﬁ ®
3

(i) A —tF+—A+H NRFFEBREE - UE
AR 30T (RERBE] 537%)2%1*%'
Z%47100,000,000 FRHEEO. 1 Bz & '
BANTIRULEES - ?D%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁéﬁﬁféz}ﬁﬁ
BRIBFHEHNABARK128,337,0007T © B H
EE ZE ARG RBIRA - CBETRVRE S
EHERERHAERNZE RS ER

i

(ii)

N

'

5

/
| \

(iv) HE-_ZTZ—+tHF+-_A=+—HBHFER  #£F
18,590,00017 B AR #ETT(E © K1t + AN A A LA Nt
FHBESRBE . 207817 18,590,000/ K13

(b) EBRRAE
EEMEHENB T A ERBRE - IR THE
BENTEERASNE TEHROMERRER
HA BT AERSBRO 2 FHRTE  UBS
ERE - FRBREEARLERZE=FHM (R
TH)HART  ENHAREELNA—BE/REE
KRR - BRI NR L A HET 10FATTE -
AEEY EXRTFREEES - URSBEKEN
FERHE -
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B Ot BRI

24. Share capital, premium and share options 24, BRZ& - RERBRE(E
[continued)

(b)  Share options (continued) (b) MEBREEE)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding  RITFEHERESE REBEOMETLHTEER

and their related weighted average exercise prices are as  ZB)AT :

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
Average Average
exercise exercise
price.  Number of price  Number of
per share share per share share
option options option options
BRERE EBRE SRERE i g
TEE =] 1718 #A
HKS 000 HKS 000
BT Fat BT F&t
At 1 January Kn—H—H 1.52 43,367 1.78 42,647
Adjustment on issue of BB ATALRR T FH B
bonus shares - - - 8,530
Eereted 31 129 (18,590) 1.29 (7.810)
At 31 December WNt+=—A=+—8 1.70 24,777 1.52 43,367

Out of the total 24,777,000 (2016: 43,367,000) R-ZZE—+F+_-_A=+—H BHARTEH

outstanding share options as at 31 December 2017, MR #E L & & 24,777,000 ( Z T — X F :

24,777,000 (2016: 32,807,000) share options were  43,367,000)13 » 524 777 000(=F—

fully vested and exercisable. JNEE 1 32,807,000) 18 2 BB EE TR FEEI A
FITIE ©

Share options exercised in 2017 resulted in 18,500,000 H‘EZZT—+F - {TEBREEEI1T18,590,000
(2016:7,810,000) shares being issued at an average (ZZF—7X%F : 7,810,000) k&5 + LI FH1T
price of HK$1.29 (2016: HK$1.29) each. The related {EMBERABRE] 20T (=T —F : H%1.29
share price at the time of exercise was HK$1.66 (2016:  JT) » T EREENMETHRELASREE
HK$1.66) per share. 1.66T0(ZZF—/RF : BE1.667T) °

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the  FEFARRARITEBRMEN T B F/TEBLIT ¢

following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Original Adjusted 2017 2016
exercise exercise <~ —T—tH T RF
price per price per  Number of  Number of

share option  share option share options share options

SRBRE SERBRE (thousands) (thousands)

Expiry date EH A R@pTEE KARTEE  EREYE B A
HK$ HK$ (F3t) (F&h)
BIT BT (Note) (Note)
(Note) (PEE) (P3E)

(B &E)
14 February 2024 —E_NFE—-A+MUH 1.70 1.29 - 18,590
30 November 2024 —E-_NFE+—A=1+H 2.24 1.70 24,777 24,777
24,777 43,367
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B Ot BRI

24. Share capital, premium and share options 24, BRZ& - REBRBERE(E

[continued)

(b)  Share options (continued) (b) FERRRE(E)

Note: The issue of bonus shares was completed on 13 August 2015 [z : AR TR -_E—RAFENAF+=BR-"Z—~F+t
and 12 July 2016. Pursuant to the respective terms of the share A+ B - IBIEEARRERT 22 R - MERITE
option schemes, adjustments were made to the exercise price of BERRE Y R DT E B R B BEE KA IS ZE (T2
the share and the number of shares entitled to be subscribed for D RIVEH T o

under the outstanding share options as a result of the completion
of the bonus issue.

25. Other reserves 25. Hfthf#fs
Capital
redempfion Share
Capital ~ Contributed ~ Statutory reserve options
reserve surplus reserves [Note d) equiy  Currency
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) RARE reserve  translation

BAafE  BREH ixlke ffa BRE reserve Total
(Mi&a) CED) (M&c) (Fad)  RARE  EXRE &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR

At 1 January 2016 W=%-7%-5-H 685 9,500 131,279 711 14,826 347 157,348
Currency franslation differences EXZE - - - - - (49) (43)
Employees share option scheme: [EEERiETE
- Value of share options granted - RHERE BE = = = = 3,435 = 3,435
- Value of share opfions exercised ~ —{TEERE BE - - - - (3,658) - 3,658)
Change in non-controlling inferests ~ AEEERAERRI ER L
in Group's equily: 29
- Equity acquired by the Group from  — A& BmIERRIEERK
non-controlling inferests (Note 37) BES (M) (193) - - - - - (193)
Transfer from refained eamings 128 B e - - 1,931 - - - 1,931
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZB-AE
TZR=t-RzE&H 492 9,500 133,210 711 14,603 302 158,818
At 1 Jonuary 2017 W=%-tf-A-B 492 9,500 133,210 711 14,603 302 158,818
Currency translation differences EXZE - - - - - (227) (227)
Employees share opfion scheme: EERRETH:
- Volue of share options gronted - BHBREZERE - - - - 142 - 142
- Volue of share options exercised -7 REZ ERE - - - - (3,971) - (3,971)
Transfer from retained earnings RERFIEE - - 341 - - - 341
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tE
TZR=t-RAzEs 492 9,500 133,551 Al 10,774 75 155,103
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

c]

(d)
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Other reserves [continued)

Capital reserve of the Group mainly represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the share exchange on 16 February 2004
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor.

Contributed surplus represents the capital contribution from an
executive director and an indirect substantial shareholder of the
Company, as part of a reorganisation exercise of the Group.

According to the articles of association of the relevant
subsidiaries established in Mainland China and the Mainland
China rules and regulations, Mainland China subsidiaries are
required fo transfer not less than 10% of their net profit as stated
in their annual financial statements prepared under Mainland
China accounting regulations to statutory reserves before the
corresponding Mainland China subsidiaries can distribute any
dividend. Such a transfer is not required when the amount of
statutory reserves reaches 50% of the corresponding subsidiaries’
registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the corresponding subsidiaries, to expand
the corresponding subsidiaries’ production operations, or fo
increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries. Upon
approval by resolutions of the corresponding subsidiaries’
shareholders in general meetings, the corresponding subsidiaries
may convert their statutory reserves into registered capital and
issue bonus capital to existing owners in proportion to their
existing ownership structure. As at 31 December 2017, the
amount of statutory reserves of Xiamen Doingcom Chemical
Co., lid, Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., lid and
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co. ltd. had reached 50% of
its registered capital and accordingly, no further transfer to its
statutory reserves has been made.

The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of the
Company’s own shares.

T FER

25.
P2 -

(a)

(b)

[c]

(d)

B Ot BRI
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B Ot BRI

26. Trade payables and bills payable

26. BNRAFRENEE

2017 2016

—E—t5F —ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'O00

AR¥T T AREET T

Trade payables FEfTBR R 46,122 30,722
Bills payable NS 144,134 151,509
190,256 182,231

The aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable

ENERRENZRREZRREBHZREKE DTN

based on invoice date were as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AR¥TR ARKETTT
0 to 30 days 0ZE30X 48,226 29,258
31 to 60 days 31260XK 18,465 31,143
61 to 90 days 61&290XK 22,656 44,469
91 to 180 days Q1&2180K 81,597 58,918
181 to 365 days 181 &2365K% 15,263 16,821
Over 365 days HBiB365K 4,049 1,622
190,256 182,231

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables and

AEENRERNERRENRENKREEATIIE

bills payable are denominated in the following currencies: #8817
2017 2016
—E—tF —FE—NEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARKETTT
Renminbi AR 185,251 179,154
US dollar e 5,005 3,077
190,256 182,231

The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable g 88 20 % pe (< = 4 B T (B B EL 2\ 42 (BRI o

approximate their fair values.

Bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits of the =i A AN T2 BT 2 2R VEHE IR o
Company.
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BRI
27. Accruals and other payables 27. BEtERARHEMEMSK
2017 2016
—B—tF —EB—RE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBT T

Payable for construction costs and property, ERREERANRBEYE -

plant and equipment B 55 M RR e 2 il 2 4,150 1,763
Receipts in advance TR BR K 1,212 21,185
Output value-added tax payable JEfH 5 TE R {E 9,826 11,051
Accruals for administrative, AT - HERMSHEER

selling and marketing expenses 23,195 23,354

38,383 57,353

The carrying amounts of the Group's accruals and other RNEBHETEAREMENRINEESENAT

payables are denominated in the following currencies: SIERESEM
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Renminbi ARHE 31,154 49 507
US dollar ETT 391 645
Hong Kong dollar B TT 6,838 7,201

38,383 57,353

The carrying amounts of other payables approximate their  Hh A REEEESEE A A BEREE BEEUA
fair values. REEE -
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B Ot R R MIEE
28. Borrowings 28. BE
2017 2016
—F—+tF kAL
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Non-current E17:1)
Government loans BB - 500
Bank borrowings RITIEE 449,385 221,652
449,385 222,152
Current B HA SR &
Government loans BIRER 1,170 1,120
Bank borrowings IRITEE 763,744 088,436
764,914 989,556
Total borrowings fEEHEE 1,214,299 1,211,708

Terms and maturity of the government loans are as follows: BT E KGR KB T :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —FENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Repayable in 2018, (2016: BR_Z—N\FME
2017 to 2018) interest-bearing at 2.6% BR(ZZE—RF: ZZ2—+tFF
(2016: 2.6%) per annum ZZE-N\F)  LA2.6E
(ZZE—RF : 2.6B)FHEHS 500 950
Repayable on demand, non-inferest bearing  BNEiEE » %5 670 670

1,170 1,620
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BRI
28. Borrowings (continued) 28. BE(&
At 31 December 2017, the Group's borrowings were R-ZT—+F+=-F=+—H  A=BEEENE
repayable as follows: HET
Bank borrowings Government loans
RITEE BRER
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF ZE—tF ZZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT AR®TRE ARETT

Within 1 year —FLAR 763,744 088,436 1,170 1,120
Between 1 and 2 years —EEWE 110,540 221,652 - 500
Between 2 and 5 years MEZHF 338,845 = - =

1,213,129 1,210,088 1,170 1,620

The effective annual interest rates at the balance sheet REFEB ZEBRFFENT -
date were as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Government loans BB 1.1% 1.5%
Bank borrowings RITIEE 4.4% 51%

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair ~ EREVEREE R E A L ERE -
values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated EREVRE R A T EERER :
in the following currencies:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00

ARBFR ARBT T

Renminbi AREE 405,508 405,628
US dollar e 592,186 806,080
HK dollar ik 206,419 -
Australian dollar BT 10,186 -

1214299 1,211,708
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B Ot BRI

28. Borrowings (continued)
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

28. f&E&(#&)
REEE TIRIEREHAE :

2017 2016
—E—+tF e Ay
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Floating rate PES
— expiring within one year ——FREH 731,595 221,003
— expiring beyond one year ——F A EFH - -
Fixed rate EL
— expiring within one year ——FREH 50,460 36,752
— expiring beyond one year ——F A EFHR - 47,400
782,055 305,155

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has provided
corporate guarantees o support banking facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries amounting to RMB789,548,000
(2016: RMBQ67,711,000).

Bank borrowings and bills payable of RMB530,996,000
(2016:RMB231,028,000) are supported by corporate
guarantees provided by the Company and bank borrowings
and bills payable of RMB826,267,000 (2016:
RMBT,130,569,000) are supported by cross guarantees

between subsidiaries.

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest-
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the
balance sheet dates are as follows:

RZE—tF+TA=+—H ' ARERET
HENBRRIARK789,548,000t(ZF—X
F: AREB967,711,0007T) WIRITRL E R E 1
H A RIELR

RITEFRRENREARKES530,096,0007T(=
T—RF: AR¥231,028,0007T) AR AIPZ
X5 RITERRENRBEARKS26,267,000
T(ZZ—RF : AR¥1,130,569,0007T ) LA
B ABIBRER -

REEB  AEBNEFRENREGHRANEN
EERHMAENRERIT

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN S

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETIT

6 months or less OfE A AT 1,067,064 955,840
6-12 months 61218 R 147,235 255,368
1-5 vears 1-54 - 500
1,214,299 1,211,708
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B Ot BRI

29. Deferred income tax 29. EEFFBHIE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EAEETFERAIHITEHESHRIBEER S ARG
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current & &4y - ABREMGHEEMA GBS RRA—
tfax assefs against current tax liabilities and when the  Fi#E - BT K ELEFRESHEEMB EE K

deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. % o 2 & &5 82 B 72 7] — BB (= 3K 58 OB T AT 15
The following balances, determined after appropriate  B&AEBREEHNHINAOT :
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBETIT
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered @1 218 B 1& U B gy iE T
after more than 12 months RS &E 5,470 5,470
Deferred income tax liabilities to be @1 218 B 1& U B gy iE T
settled after more than 12 months S asE (65,400) (57,900)

The gross movements in the deferred income tax assets EIEFTSFHRMAE BT ¢
and liabilities are as follows:

Tax loss

A HEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AR¥T T AREFT
At 1 January n—A—H (52,430) (43,587)

Charged to the consolidated income EAHFERA

statement (Note 12) B (FIEET12) (7,500) (8,843)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (59,930) (52,430
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B Ot BRI

29. Deferred income tax (continued)

29. EEFEHREAE)

Deferred income tax assets EEFREHEE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AR¥T T ARBET T
At 1 January =JE=8 5,470 2,313

Credited to the consolidated EEMFBERAER

income statement - 3,157
At 31 December F=H=nr—H 5,470 5,470

At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses
of RMB7 1,525,000 (2016: RMB61,277,000) available
for offsetting against future profits, and a deferred income
tax asset of RMB5,470,000 (2016: RMB5,470,000) has
been recognised in respect of such losses. No deferred
income tax asset has been recognised in respect of a fotal
of RMB8,151,000 (2016: RMB6,230,000) due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

At 31 December 2017, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB134,454,000 (2016: RMB95,260,000) has not
been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries as the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute these earnings in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2017, unremitted
earnings amounted to RMB1,344,542,000 (2016:
RMB?52,599,000).

Deferred income tax liabilities

HABEHNERRARBEEMSEHEENHRE
AR¥E71,525000 (=2 —KRF: AR¥K
61,277,0007T) » RIRFE BRI EE L KRR ER
BABEEMROBERSE NS MER - SERE
EFSHEERARKES 470,000t (ZF—KR
F: AR¥S5,470,0007T) » AEE I 3L A 4588
A H AR R ERARES, 151,000 (ZF— X
F: AR¥06,230,0007T) °

(&= [ B FR 2 1 5 Y B 2 B MR B SRS e % Y /B
RAEEA R RR NG HAARERNBEL DR -
AEBEYABRETHERRNRERMNBEAT
MORAAEHRMEMHARIECHEHRE
BARM®E134,454,000t(ZF—RF : AR¥
95,260,0007T) ° tFARE R KD S FIERIM
BE - RZE—tF+_A=+—HHRERK
mEHARY,344,542,0007t(ZF— R :
AR#952,599,0007T) °

EEFFEHREE-&

i)

Withholding tax

KRIMFABH
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
At 1 January —HA—H 57,900 45,900
Charged to the consolidated income EEHFIEERA
statement &5 7,500 12,000
At 31 December +=—A=+—8 65,400 57,900
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B OB BRI
30. Financial instruments by category 30. €mT A (RER)
Assets at
fair value
Loans and  through the Available-
receivables  profit & loss for-sale Total
URAEE
TEEHBE
BPNE) AHHE
B R L EE tHEE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR AR®BTRT AR%T:R

At 31 December 2017 W=—Z2—+&+=-HA=+-H
Assets as per balance sheet BREEESBRNEE
Availablefor-sale financial assets AL EEREE

(Note 18] (fzE18) - - 200 200
Derivative financial instruments TESRMIA

(Note 19) (M&E19) - 39 - 39
Trade and other receivables excluding — FEYK BR 3% & E At & IR

nonfinancial assets (TREFEREE) 528,343 - - 528,343
Loan to an associate (Note 35(b)) Bt E B (KTEE35(b)) 3,000 - 3,000
Amounts due from related companies &4 B8R 5 7B (Pt 3E35(c))

(Note 35(c)) 2,415 - - 2,415
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BHEAZ RITER(HIE23) 57,254 - - 57,254
Shortterm bank deposits (Note 23) BHER TR (KTE23) 16,550 - - 16,550
Cash and cash equivalents RERALEEY

(Note 23) (H#E23) 1,888,712 - - 1,888,712
Total st 2,496,274 39 200 2,496,513

Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
Hith
SREE -
RS et
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
At 31 December 2017 R-ZB—t&+=-A=+—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEEEBRNEE
Borrowings (Note 28) B (HIE28) 1,214,299 1,214,299
Trade and other payables JEAF BR 3R R EL i FE A 3K

excluding non-financial liabilities (TBEFTmEE) 216,466 216,466
Amounts due fo related companies (Note 35(c)) f&{t BEHE 5 Z08 (FF7E35(c) 687 687
Amount due to a director (Note 35(el) B —E =B (HEE35(e) 30 30
Total st 1,431,482 1,431,482
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BT B R M
30. Financial instruments by category 30. €@ I E(RER) (&)
(continued)
Assets at
fair value
loans and  through the Available-
receivables  profit & loss for-sale Tofal
ARREE
StEEHES
BWNEE:D! AT HE
R ELR BE SREE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARBTT AREBT
At 31 December 2016 N-ZE-X&E+=H=+-8H
Assets as per balance sheet BREEESBERNEE
Availableforsale financial assets R ESREE
(Note 18] (BIzE18) - = 200 200
Derivative financial instruments TEepTE
(Note 19) (KzE19) = 1,582 = 1,582
Trade and other receivables excluding &4 R 5% K E 4t e Yk
nonfinancial assets (TEEEeREE) 698,628 = - 698,628
Loan to an associate [Note 35(b)) s HEE (FEE35(b) 3,000 - - 3,000
Amounts due from related companies  fEUR BBHE 5 FUR
(Note 35(c)) (B7E35(c)) 39 - - 39
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BHEMR 2 RITFER(KRE23) 60,498 = = 60,498
Shortterm bank deposits (Note 23) g BRSR 1T 3k (P 3E23) 22,650 - - 22,650
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEY
(Note 23) (BIzE23) 1,563,170 = - 1,563,170
Total st 2,347,985 1,582 200 2,349,767
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through the liabilities af
profit & loss  amortised cost Total
AR EE
FATEEEE H
T AR Ea =R
=L RE AR HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARBFT
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XE+=-B=+—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet RBEEEBERNEE
Borrowings (Note 28) B (HI7E28) - 1,211,708 1,211,708
Derivative financial instruments MESMIA
(Note 19) (BFEE19) 5,533 = 5,533
Trade and other payables JRE <t BR 3k e LAt FE 15 R
excluding non-financial liabilities (TBpiEEemam) - 206,136 206,136
Amounts due to related companies  fE{t BB J5 28
(Note 35(c)) (WEE35(c) - 8,587 8,587
Amount due to a director FERtE =B
(Note 35(e)) (FI&E35(e)) = 21 21
Total #at 5,533 1,426,452 1,431,985
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SO R MIEE
31. Cash flow information 31. BE&RER
(a) Cash generated from operations (o) KREEBELZRS
2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARBT T

Profit for the year FRENH 183,767 145,508
Adjustments for: SARIER
— Taxation (Note 12) — M\ (HE12) 58,881 74,229
— Depreciation (Note 16) —EHE6) 44,684 42,701
— loss on disposals of property, plant and —HENE  BERRBZEE
equipment (Note 6) (KFzE06) 25 -
— Amortisation of: —HHATRIA
— land use rights [Note 15) — T {FEAREETS) 953 457
— Intangible assets (Note 17) —EREEME7) 11,846 8,222
— Interest income (Note 7) — F EWA (FIFE7) (26,095) (26,079)
— Inferest expense on bank borrowings and —RITEERBNER 2 FBFHX
government loans (Note 7) (HFzx7) 64,725 57,154
— Share of [profit)/losses of associates —ZEBERE, (BB haE
(Note 11) (BFEE1 1) (307) 386
— Gain on disposal of an associate (Note 6]  — Hit& — 9B & ~ W25 (K FE6) - (5,228)
— Net fair value gains on derivative —TESBMTANRAREE
financial instruments (Note 6) W es /25 (FIaES) (3,990) (33,803
— Share-based payment expenses —ARMD AT NERNER
(Note 8) (FiE8) 142 3,435
— Exchange differences —EHER (19,062) -
Operating profit before working EEEE A 2 LA FE
capital changes 315,569 266,982
Changes in working capital: BEESE
— Inventories —FE (69,415) 6,638
— Trade and bills receivables — YRR 168,071 (103,164)
— Prepayments and other receivables — FEA R E A FE R 25,625 (51,687)
— Amounts due from related companies — JfE Y R 75 SRR (2,376) (39)
— Amounts due to related parties — [ A 75 TRIE (7,900) 2,010
— Trade payables and bills payable A ES 8,025 (36,600)
— Accruals and other payables —JEET B A R H b e (20,785) (6,067
Cash generated from operations KREEBEEZRS 416,814 78,067

Annual Report 2017 —ZT—+HFFH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot BRI

31. Cash flow information (continued) 31. BERER(E)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMEEBELENER  WERLOT :
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities T&EBAAKEHBEEBELRRZEE -

arising from financing activities.

Liabilities from
financing activities

RERBEL AR
Amount Borrowings Borrowings
due to due within due after
a director 1 year 1 year Total
—ENR —FU%
EA-ESF0E  DEMNEE  DH0ES A&t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRE ARETRT ARETR

As at 1 January 2017 R-ZE—t%&—H—H 21 989,556 222,152 1,211,729
Cash flows BER 9 (282,774) 293,448 10,683
Foreign exchange adjustments JE R T - (10,887) (8,175) (19,062)
Other non-cash movements Hih IR & - 69,019 (58,040) 10,979
As at 31 December 2017 R-B—+t&E+=-B=+—-H 30 764,914 449,385 1,214,329
32. Dividends 32. RE

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 REERITrHEBEAS L BEEEE _T—
December 2017 of HK3.3 cents per share, totalling +&+_-_A=+—BItFELRKRBPREFR3.3
approximately of RMB20,702,000, is to be proposed #fll - & *#ARE20,702,0007T ° & G817
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These $ERIWERBILEMNE -

consolidated financial statements do not reflect such

dividend payable.

2017 2016
—F—tF  —FAE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Interim dividend paid of HK1.5 cents Bk B S SR E R 5B

(2016: HK1.4 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—7"F + 1.4380) 8,589 7,937
Proposed final dividend of HK3.3 cents FORR B S RCE @R 3. 3

(2016: HK3.4 cents) per ordinary share (ZZ—7"F : 3.4%1) 20,702 20,171

29,291 28,108
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B O SRR MEE
33. Contingent liabilities 33. BARER
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant R=ZT—+F+=—F=+—H ' AE=EHEF[
contingent liabilities. BRZHARE -
34. Commitments 34. EiE
(a) Capital commitments (o) BAREE
2017 2016
—E—t%  —E AR
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥ETT
Capital commitments contracted but not RREHREEERD T

provided for af end of the reporting period BRI
are as follows:

— Construction-in-progress and property, —TEEIRBUERME  BE
plant and equipment B 186,298 16,291
— Product development projects —EmFAETE 41,400 22,520
227,698 38,811
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEIEE

The Group leases certain premises under non-cancellable  AEEBEREZH T AIMBENLCEHERRBRE
operating lease agreements in respect of property, plant  F#% - lE kiE# - ZSHOZ KK - HE£HA
and equipment. The lease have varying terms, escalation  BIERRELIEFT— - FARE FFFIEREZH
clauses and renewal rights. The lease expenditure ZMEFRLZEKFSHE -

expensed in the consolidated income statement during the

year is disclosed in Note 8.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-  REBEFAIHHLEHE - RRKERENFHLEHE

cancellable operating leases are as follows: m
2017 2016
—g—tF  —F-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETT
Not later than 1 year TR —F 3,312 2,925
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years BRA—FENEART 5,408 2,243

8,720 5,168
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B Ot BRI

35. Related party transactions

The Company is 36% owned by Marietta Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) which is owned
by Mr. Yang Yirong.

(a) Sales and purchases of goods and services
The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

35. BEEAR%

RATFZ36% M H

—EBERRETEREZRE

R BB M 2 A B —Marietta Limited#E A ©

(a)

=
=

BB T ETTRR BT ¢

mREBHEHEREBE

2017 2016

—B—tF —EREF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETIT

Sales of goods to an associate EmEE T M 3,884 2,905
Purchases of goods from related companies EmRE e e 2,976 2,160
Subcontracting fee payable to an associate  FEfT —FREEE & Z hn L & 7,210 9,596

In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions
were carried out in the normal course of the Group's
business, and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the
respective parties.

EEZRR LRGN AESEEREXBBET
EL  YWRETRE Z GFET

(b) Loan to an associate (b) HKEEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AREFTT
Loan to an associate Bt EE 3,000 3,000
As at 31 December 2017, the loan fo an associate is p—T—+&E+—-A=+—0H ' % gﬁ%ﬁg;ﬁ%
unsecured, bearing interest at the rate of 6% per annum g . Eﬂzgé% BER-—E-—T&EmA+

and is repayable on 14 April 2020 (2016: 14 April

2017).

mA(=

? /\45'E

—T—tFHATmAEE -

EcoGreen Infernational Group Limited 18R EE B R A A
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35. Related party transactions (continued)
(c) Amounts due from/to related companies

B Ot BRI

35. ML (&
(c) FEW FEREEETS IR

2017 2016
—F—tE  —FAF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBT T

Amounts due from related companies JFE U B 5 508 2,415 39
Amounts due fo related companies JE AT A ESE 75 7038

— associate — B 687 1,714

— related parties — BT - 6,873

687 8,587

As at 31 December 2017, the balances are unsecured,
interestfree and are repayable on demand.

(d) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors [executive and non-
executive) and the senior management with their details
as set out in the "Biographical details of directors and
senior management” section of the annual report. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

RZEBE—+F+-_HA=+—H  HELEHKRF -
GERERENREE -

(d) BREEASMS
AREEABBRES(MTESRIERNTES)
SREEAER  BEACOFBEEMEARNFR
[EENSRAERE| -8R - ABRREEAS
XEREERBHENREMNMESMT:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00

ARBTR ARBT T

Salaries and other shortterm employee benefits ¥4 K H 55 Hi{E 8185 10,962 9,895
Refirement benefit RIKER

— defined contribution plans — G 204 198
Share-based payments AR 2 EEHE £ S A5 18 1,953
Total HEt 11,184 12,046

(e) Amount due to a director
The details of the amount due to a director are as follows:

(e) EN—UEBRE
RN~ ESFHENFBOD

2017 2016
—F—tFE  —BAF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBT T

Mr. Yang Yirong BB KL

30 21

The amount due to a director is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is repayable on demand.
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B Ot BRI

36. Benefits and interests of directors

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the

!

remuneration of every director and the chief executive is
set out below:

36. EENNmMER

(o) EBERTHRARME
HE_ZT—+F+_RA=1+—HILFE BZF
ERTRAROFHMT

2017 2016
—E-tE —2RE
Share-based Share-based
compensation compensation
Salaries (Note) ~ Retirement Salaries (Note) Retirement
Director’s and DY) benefit Director's and iR A benefit
fees  allowance EBZHE scheme Total fees  allowance ERZE scheme Total
Name of Director T ESHe FeREE (KisE) BRERIH o ESHe HekEl (GEI T @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR%ETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR
Mr. Yang Yirong BREEE
(Chairman and President]  (FE###) 641 1,803 - 29 2,473 629 1,749 56 29 2,463
Ms. Lu Jichua EXELL 381 748 - 28 1,157 374 662 345 26 1,407
Mr. Han Huan Guang BENLE 381 927 - 16 1,324 = 1,212 345 15 1,572
Mr. Lin Zhigang MR K& 381 402 - 28 811 374 406 345 26 1,151
Mr. Gong Xionghui BB E 381 407 - 28 816 374 371 345 26 1,116
Mr. Feng Tao EELL - - - - - . - _ _ _
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERREE 188 11 - - 199 184 11 57 - 252
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John  ERBHE4E 188 1 - - 199 184 8 57 = 249
Mr. Lin David Ying Tsung ~ #REREAE 188 8 - - 196 35 - - - 35
Mr. lov Wang Yip, Derick ~ 2% %4 - - - - - 104 6 - - 110
Note: Share-based compensation represents the fair value of share  psr : LIRGAER Y BEAEAE TS HZRERER

options granted by the Group recognised during the year.

During the year, no discretionary bonuses, remunerations
paid or receivable in respect of accepting office as
director and emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
director’s other service in connection with the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking were paid or
made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any
payable (2016: nil).

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits
During the year, no refirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors;
nor are any payable (2016: nil).
(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
No consideration was provided fo or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2016:
nil).

WRZANE -

AEE  SEAERIERAEFRERRES  BE
METES B BB e R EER
RAHEMBAREENERR{ELMBEZTRE
M 32 A 2 FE MR B0 B & Sl AT FR AN R ( — T — X 4
) o

BE-_ZT—+tHF+-A=+—HIFE ULEE
EREAAME(ZT—REF &) -
(b) EBRAKEFRBEBER
AEE  SEERKERAESRARAKERN

FAAR 1E B S AR A S SRIR SR i AR R Sk R FE A
RK(ZT—RF E) -

(c) BMERHESBRBRQF=HXMT2MK
&

MENERERUEETREME TE=ENREXE

—EARREHESREMBBRORE(ZFT X

F )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. Benefits and interests of directors
[continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected

entitles with such directors
As at 31 December 2017, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such

directors (2016: None).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts
None of the directors of the Company and their connected
entities had a material interest, directly or indirectly, in
any significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was or is a party that subsisted at the end of the year or af
any time during the year (2016: None).

37. Business combinations and transaction

with non- controlling interests
Prior to 25 October 2016, the Group held 70% equity
interest in Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co.,
ltd.. On 25 October 2016, the Group acquired the
remaining 30% equity interest for a total consideration
of RMB3,000,000. The carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests in Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry

Trading Co., Ltd. at the date of acquisition was
RMB2,807,000.

The following table summarises the non-cash consideration
at the acquisition date and the calculation of change in
capital reserve:

B Ot BRI

36. EEWFmMER(E)

(d) FBUES SESEHZEERHA
EETHECERAXBAZER
BRERRHEMRZ2EHR

RZFB—+tF+_A=+—H HEREE &
E2ZEHEAANBEBRERETRELNER
BEUBERSIUZZEALTAZEANEMR S (ZF
— N ) o

() EBRXRS  REURBHZEARG

NEBRARFLER - ARBWLERFT TS RA
EEZEKMARAZES N EBEEREER
MECHRBEEARZEERS  THHA
B(ZZT—RF: &)

37. REEGHREAFERMEEZN
R
R-B—AF+A-+HAN  AEEBELH
RRHERSERAF/0%ZBME - AEER
—E—AF+HAZ+REARANRERAREI00
B 7T B EL 82 30 % IR HE - SR P M E
BESBRARZFREES 2 BEBEAARY
280.787T °

TRMEEMERBAERE THOYE - KR
AR BEE 2 A

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREBTFT
Purchase consideration g H B
— Prepayments for purchase of raw materials  — B2 R RIFEN 5B - 3,000
Total consideration BHE - 3,000
Carrying amount of non-controlling inferests BAFEERNEREER
acquired - (2,807
Excess of carrying amount over consideration  BRENE AR B X FEE B H 7
paid recognised within equity fE i iR - 193
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO R R MIEE
38. Events after the balance sheet date 38. #ER%ER
There are no significant events occurred affer the balance  ZRATIREE BE YW B A (F R EAEIE o
sheet date.
39. Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 39, A ATWNEEEEREBEEET
Company
(a) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 (a) HBE=ZZ—tFE+=—A=+—HLXK
December 2017 AFNEEEER
2017 2016
—e-tE B AE
Note RMB’000 RMB'0O00
ihg=a ARETT ARBTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in and amounts due RHTEB AR 2 IRE R ER
from subsidiaries WEAR®®E 401,974 . 401833
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A IENGIE S 760,628 702,554
Prepayments SEUNEN 47 47
Derivative financial instruments PTESMI A 39 Q74
_Coshond cash equivalents = R&ER&E®EW 3548 ... 3,710
764,262 707,285
Total assets BB E 1,166,236 1,109,118
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the BEEBRLAREEE
Company
Share capital AR AS 75,380 65,237
Share premium RN %5 B 341,876 202,474
Other reserves EH b (b) 102,426 106,255
Retained earnings IREBABAH| (c) 53,097 40,478
Total equity R 572,779 414,444
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R LR
39. Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 39. K AGNEEEBREBESE
Company (continued) (&)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 (a) BE=ZT—t&+=-A=+—HLXK
December 2017 (continued) AENEEEBR(E)
2017 2016
—®-tE B AE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M= ARETT AREFT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FFREBEE
Bewowdloge L 449385 . 221,652
Current liabilities FBEE
Borrowings = 141,182 380,799
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA - 5,533
Amount due to a subsidiary FES BB A R5RIE - 84,521
Accruals and other payables FEET B A N E A B AN X 2,890 2,169
R, 144,072 B 473,022
Total liabilities BaF 593,457 694,674
Total equity and liabilities HEZLRAE 1,166,236 1,109,118

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the

Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were signed
on its behalf.

YANG YIRONG
B
Chairman

S
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B OB BRI

39. Balance sheet and reserve movementofthe 39, KA TN EEEBERBESRE

Company (continued) (&)
(b) Other reserve movement of the Company (b) ARHAMFEEEE
Share
Capital options
Capital  redemption equity
reserve reserve BIRE Total
RAERE REABERERE RAFEE #st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTT AR®TT ARET:Z

At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H 90,941 711 14,826 106,478
Employees share option scheme: & B Rk IERT S :
- Value of share options granted - RHBRE, BE - - 3,435 3,435
- Value of share options exercised —(TE R 2 BE = = (3,658) (3,658)
Balance af 31 December 2016 R-ZT—RE
TZRA=+—Bz#&# 90,941 711 14,603 106,255
At 1 January 2017 R=ZZE—tF—HF—H 90,941 711 14,603 106,255
Employees share option scheme: R EBRERE
— Value of share options granted —EHERE BE - - 142 142
— Value of share options exercised —TE R EE - - (3,971) (3,971)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F
TZA=T—Hz#&H 90,941 711 10,774 102,426
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B OB BRI

39. Balance sheet and reserve movementofthe 39, K ARIMNEEABREEES T
Company (continued) (&)
(c) Retained earnings movement of the Company  (c) A TMREZRFIEE)

RMB’'000
AR¥ETTT
At 1 January 2016 B N =] 27,761
Profit for the year FEAH 28,813
2015 final dividend TE-RF KBRS (11,817)
2016 interim dividend ZE-REZHEBRKRE (7,937
Employees share option scheme: EEBREE
— Value of share option exercised —ITEERE 2 EE 3,658
At 31 December 2016 ZE-XRE+ZA=+-—H 40,478
At 1 January 2017 —ET—+F—HA—H 40,478
Profit for the year FEAH 37,408
2016 final dividend TEREZREARE (20,171)
2017 interim dividend “E—tEHERKRE (8,589)
Employees share option scheme: EEBREE
— Value of share option exercised —TEEEREZEE 3,971
At 31 December 2017 —E=—+&+=-A=+—H 53,097
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FBBEHME
Results E4
Year ended 31 December
BE+=A=t-HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—ZT-=f C"E-MmF ZE-nF ZE-RE ZE-tF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
Revenue WA 1,227,295 1,418,802 1,536,763 1,632,779 1,571,382
Operating profit I 219,186 203,643 221,436 301,251 236,659
Finance costs SR (20,548 (33,857) (65,930) (81,128) 5,682
Share of losses of associates and B EEEOER
provision for impairment of BeRERERE
investment in an associate (474) (505) (4,026) (386) 307
Profit before taxation BREL R 198,164 169,281 151,480 219,737 242,648
Taxation IR (48,7106) (58,448 (66,2906) (74,229 (58,881)
Profit for the year FEFE 149,448 110,833 85,184 145,508 183,767
Profit attributable to: FBEBR
Owners of the Company AAREEE 149,425 110,868 85,515 145,383 183,767
Non-controlling inferests R MR AR 23 (35) (331) 125 -
149,448 110,833 85,184 145,508 183,767
Dividends s 32,903 27,608 21,200 28,108 29,291
Eamings per share (RMB cents) BRAM(DARE)
Basic AR 30.9 22.7 15.8 22.4 26.8
Diluted b3 1 30.8 22.6 15.7 22.3 26.8
Financial Positions B AR OR
As at 31 December
BEZ+t=-A=1+-8
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—F—=Ff —T-QEF Z—FT-HF Z—T-NF CB-+F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR%®ETR AR¥Tn
Non-current assets FnBEE 466,062 468,984 464,678 460,229 556,978
Current assefs TEEE 1,761,607 2,147,856 2,403,068 2,689,918 2,879,668
Total assets BEHE 2,227,669 2,616,840 2,867,746 3,150,147 3,436,646
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 325,784 137,051 549,454 280,052 514,785
Current liabilities mEatE 585,070 1,071,190 846,203 1,263,160 1,010,459
Total fiablifies AfEe® 010854 1208241 1395657 10943212 1,525,244
EESFE 1,316,815 1,408,599 1,472,089 1,606,935 1,911,402
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Corporate Information

NEEF

Head office and principal place of business in

Hong Kong

Suite 5301, 53rd Floor
Central Ploza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer

office

Tricor Tengis Limited

level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal bankers

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Bank of China Limited

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Citic Bank International Limited

Hang Seng Bank, Limited

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
KBC Bank N.V.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong] Limited
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Listing: Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since @ March 2004

Stock Code: 2341

Board lot: 2,000

Par Value: HK$0.1

Trading Currency: HK$

Financial calendar 2018
Financial year ended
Full year results announced

31 December 2017
27 March 2018

Register of members closed 6-8 June 2018
(for ascertaining shareholders’ rights to attend and
vote af annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting 8 June 2018
Ex-entitlement date for final dividend 18 June 2018

Register of members closed 20-22 June 2018
(for determining entitlement to final dividend)

Record date for final dividend

Despatch of dividend warrants

Interim results to be announced

Final dividend

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK3.3 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 payable to shareholders on the register of members of
the Company on 22 June 2018.

22 June 2018
on or about 10 July 2018
end of August 2018

Subiject to approval of the proposed final dividend by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 8 June 2018,
the final dividend warrants will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company
on or about 10 July 2018.

Closing of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
6 June 2018 to Friday, 8 June 2018, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for
attendance of annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
5 June 2018.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from Wednesday, 20
June 2018 to Friday, 22 June 2018, both days inclusive, during which no transfer
of shares will be effected. To rank for the proposed final dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 19 June 2018.

Shareho|der services
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong:

Tricor Tengis Limited

level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1333
Facsimile: (852) 2810 8185

Email: isenquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please confact:

EcoGreen International Group Limited
Suite 5301, 53rd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2530 0609
Facsimile (852) 2530 0619
Email ircontact@ecogreen.com
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